
STAFF ANALYSIS FOR THE 
INITIAL SCREENING OF 
CHANGE REQUESTS

CONTENTS:
Part 1:  Map and list of requests; worksheet of 
requests

Part 2:  Criteria (from BVCP Amendment 
Procedures); Land Use category descriptions 
from BVCP

Part 3:  Requests (including staff review and 
original submitted requests)

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 660Packet Page 663



Part 1: 
MAP AND LIST OF REQUESTS;

WORKSHEET OF REQUESTS 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 661Packet Page 664



Jay Rd

Pearl P
y

Pearl St

Arapahoe Av

Table Mesa Dr

Colorado Av

Baseline Rd

Canyon Bv

College Av

Lookout Rd

Le
hi

gh
 S

t

Balsam Av

Spruce St

Iris Av

20th St
University Av

6th
S

t

Kalmia Av

71
st

 S
t

Broadway

19
th

 S
t

Moorhead Av

Gilla
sp

ie 
Dr

Sioux Dr

Yarmouth Av

Violet Av

Pine St

Lee Hill Dr

Linden Av

Walnut St

Independence Rd

76
th

 S
t

South Boulder Rd

US Hwy 36

 Footh

Marshall Rd

Diag
on

al 
Hy

17
th

 S
t

30
th

 S
t

Br
oa

dw
ay

28
th

 S
t

Flagstaf f

Rd

55
th

 S
t

26
th

 S
t

63
rd

 S
t

61
st

 S
t

57
th

 S
t

9t
h 

St

47
th

 S
t

Fo
ot

hi
lls

 P
y

Sp
in

e 
R

d
Mapleton Av

Folsom
 S

t 

ill s
H

y

2130 Arapahoe Ave.
(Naropa University)

2473 Sumac Ave.
2455 Topaz Dr.

6287 Arapahoe Ave.
(Naropa University)

4801, 4855, 4865, 4885, & 4895 Riverbend Rd. 
(Boulder Community Health)

2326, 2350/2364, & 2372 
Norwood Ave. 

4705 
Broadway #7

4545 
Broadway #6

4295 Broadway 
1179 Union Ave.
999 Violet Ave.

#5

#14

#9

2775
Valmont Rd.#15 3550 Frontier Ave.

3850 Frontier Ave.#8

#10

#1

#1

#11 4395 
Snowberry Ct.

#4 3303 
Broadway 

385 
Broadway #3

350 
Broadway #2

3485 Stanford Ct. (Mt. 
Calvary Lutheran Church)#13

0, 693 & 695. S. Broadway
(Table Mesa Shopping Ctr.) #12

Central Boulder

North Boulder
Palo Park

Colorado University

South Boulder

Southeast Boulder

East Boulder

Crossroads

Gunbarrel

BVCP Land Use

Residential

Change Requests

Very Low Density Residential (VLR)

Low Density Residential (LR)

Manufactured Housing (MH)

Subcommunity

Medium Density Residential (MR)

Mixed Density Residential (MXR)

High Density Residential (HR)

Business
Community Business (CB)

General Business (GB)

Service Commercial (SC)

Transitional Business (TB)

Regional Business (RB)

Industrial
Community Industrial (CI)

General Industrial (GI)

Light Industrial (LI)

Performance Industrial (PI)

Mixed Use
Mixed Use Business (MUB)

Mixed Use Industrial (MUI)

Mixed Use Residential (MUR)

Open Space and Mountain Parks
Open Space, Acquired (OS-A)

Open Space, Development Rights (OS-DR)

Open Space, Other (OS-O)

Other
Agricultural (AG)

Park, Urban and Other (PK-U/O)

Public (PUB)

Environmental Preservation (EP)
0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Land Use Change Requests
Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 662Packet Page 665



SUMMARY OF REQUESTS 

DECEMBER 15, 2015: Planning Board and City Council Joint Public Hearing 

A) AREA I AND AREA II ENCLAVES: 15 requests

1) 2130 Arapahoe Ave. (Naropa University) – HR to PUB & 6287 Arapahoe Ave. (Naropa

University)  – CI to CB

2) 350 Broadway – LR to TB

3) 385 Broadway – TB to LR

4) 3303 Broadway – PUB to MR or HR
5) 4295 Broadway, 1179 Union Ave.*, 999 Violet Ave. – LR to MUB (*portion of property)

6) 4545 Broadway* – MUI to LI (*portion of property)

7) 4705 Broadway* –CI to MUB (*portion of property)

8) 3550-3850 Frontier Ave. – CI to MUB

9) 2326, 2350/2364, & 2372 Norwood Ave.– VLR to unspecified residential designation

10) 4801, 4855, 4865, 4885, & 4895 Riverbend Rd. (Boulder Community Health) – TB to PUB

11) 4395 Snowberry Ct.  - LR to MUR

12) 0, 693*, & 695* S. Broadway (Table Mesa Shopping Center) –MR to CB (*portion of
properties)

13) 3485 Stanford Ct. - LR to MR

14) 2473 Sumac Ave. & 2455 Topaz Dr. – VLR to LR

15) 2775 Valmont Road – HR to unspecified designation

B) POLICY AND TEXT REQUESTS: 8 requests

16) Enhance public benefit (Chapter 2- Built Environment)

17) Clarification regarding ditches (Chapter 2- Built Environment, Chapter 9- Agriculture and Food,

VI- Urban Service Criteria and Standards)

18) Reflect public interest in renewable energy and reduction of carbon footprint

(Chapter 4- Energy and Climate)

19) Addition of conditional use category; addition of conditional use in IS-1 zoning district

(Title 9 Land Use Code)

20) Amendment to use schedule (Title 9 Land Use Code)

21) Evaluation criteria for new development and establishment of funding mechanisms

22) Initiation of Phase II – Transit Village Area Plan (TVAP)

23) Public input process regarding work plan

A map of all requests and summary of each is available online: 

www.bouldercolorado.gov/planning/bvcp-changes 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 663Packet Page 666

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/planning/bvcp-changes


PUBLIC REQUEST WORKSHEET    (P. 1) 

Land Use Map Change Requests: AREA I AND AREA II ENCLAVES (Requests 1-15)

# Description 
Staff 
Recommendation 
(further study?) 

PB 
Direction 

Council 
Direction 

Notes 

Yes No Yes No 

1 

2130 Arapahoe Ave. (Naropa 
University) Land use designation 
change from High Density Residential 
to Public;  
6287 Arapahoe Ave. (Naropa 
University) Land use designation 
change from Community Industrial to 
Community Business 

Yes 

2 
350 Broadway: Land use designation 
change from Low Density Residential 
to Transitional Business 

No 

3 
385 Broadway: Land use designation 
change from Transitional Business to 
Low Density Residential 

Yes 

4 

3303 Broadway: Land use 
designation change from Public 
to Medium or High Density
Residential 

Yes 

5 

4295 Broadway, 1179 Union Ave.*, 
999 Violet Ave.: Land use designation 
change from Low Density Residential 
to Mixed Use Business (*portion of 
property) 

No 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 664Packet Page 667



PUBLIC REQUEST WORKSHEET  (P. 2) 

Land Use Map Change Requests: AREA I AND AREA II ENCLAVES (Requests 1-15)

# Description 
Staff 
Recommendation 
(further study?) 

PB 
Direction 

Council 
Direction 

Notes 

Yes No Yes No 

6 

4545 Broadway*: Land use 
designation change from Mixed Use 
Industrial to Light Industrial (*portion 
of property) 

No 

7 

4705 Broadway*: Land use 
designation change from Community 
Industrial to Mixed Use Business 
(*portion of property) 

No 

8 

3550-3850 Frontier Ave.: Land use 
designation change from Community 
Industrial to Mixed Use Business 

No 

9 

2326, 2350/2364, & 2372 Norwood 
Ave.: Land use designation change 
from Very Low Density Residential to 
unspecified residential designation 

No 

10 

4801, 4855, 4865, 4885, & 4895 
Riverbend Rd. (Boulder Community 
Health): Land use designation change 
from Transitional Business to Public 

Yes 

11 

4395 Snowberry Ct.:  Land use 
designation change from Low Density 
Residential to Mixed Use Residential 

No 

12 

0, 693*, & 695* S. Broadway (Table 
Mesa Shopping Center): Land use 
designation change from Medium 
Density Residential to Community 
Business (*portions of properties) 

Yes 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 665Packet Page 668



PUBLIC REQUEST WORKSHEET    (P. 3) 

Land Use Map Change Requests: AREA I AND AREA II ENCLAVES (Requests 1-15)

# Description 
Staff 
Recommendation 
(further study?) 

PB 
Direction 

Council 
Direction 

Notes 

Yes No Yes No 

13 

3485 Stanford Ct.: Land use 
designation change on portion of 
property from Low Density 
Residential to Medium Density 
Residential 

Yes 

14 

2473 Sumac Ave. & 2455 Topaz Dr.: 
Land use designation change on 
portion of property from Very Low 
Density Residential to Low Density 
Residential 

No 

15 

2775 Valmont Rd.: Land use 
designation change from High 
Density Residential to unspecified 
designation - 2 submissions received 

No 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 666Packet Page 669



PUBLIC REQUEST WORKSHEET  (P. 4)

Policy & Text Change Requests (Requests 16-23)

# Description 
Staff 
Recommendation 
(further study?) 

PB 
Direction 

Council 
Direction 

Notes 

Yes No Yes No 

16 

Enhance public benefit (Chapter 2- 
Built Environment) in as many 
subsections of this chapter as 
possible 

Yes 

17 

Clarification regarding ditches 

(Chapter 2- Built Environment, 

Chapter 9- Agriculture and Food, VI- 

Urban Service Criteria and Standards) 

Yes 

18 

Reflect public interest in renewable 
energy and reduction of carbon 
footprint (Chapter 4- Energy and 
Climate) by expanding this chapter 

Yes 

19 

Addition of conditional use category; 
addition of conditional use in IS-1 
zoning district (Title 9 Land Use 
Code): Add a conditional use category 
for community gatherings; include 
outdoor entertainment in IS-1 zoning 
district 

No 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 667Packet Page 670



PUBLIC REQUEST WORKSHEET  (P. 5)

Policy & Text Change Requests (Requests 16-23)

# Description 
Staff 
Recommendation 
(further study?) 

PB 
Direction 

Council 
Direction 

Notes 

Yes No Yes No 

20 

Amendment to use schedule (Title 9 
Land Use Code)  to allow existing 
sites and facilities to develop 
community-oriented uses 

No 

21 

Evaluation criteria for new 

development and establishment of 

funding mechanisms: Develop 

criteria including all components of 

Sustainability Framework and 

establish funding mechanisms for 

projects showing community benefit 

No 

22 

Initiation of Phase II – Transit Village 

Area Plan (TVAP): Initiate the 

necessary land use and zoning 

changes for this area 

No 

23 

Public input process regarding work 

plan: Develop a process to identify 

projects with significant public 

benefit and alignment with BVCP 

No 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 668Packet Page 671



Part 2: 
CRITERIA (from BVCP 

Amendment procedures); 
LAND USE CATEGORY DESCRIPTIONS 

(from BVCP)

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 669Packet Page 672



II. Amendment Procedures
The Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan is a joint policy document that is adopted by the City of Boulder 
and Boulder County in their legislative capacities. Any amendment to the plan is also legislative in nature. 
The plan is updated periodically to respond to changed circumstances or community needs. Changes to the 
comprehensive plan fall into three categories:  

• Changes that may be considered at any time
• Changes that may be considered during a mid-term review
• Changes that may only be considered during the five-year update

For changes to the plan: 
• Where the “county” alone is referred to in the policy, the policy may be amended by the county,

after referral to the city.
• Where the “city” alone is referred to in the policy, the policy may be amended by the city, after

referral to the county.
• All other policies will be construed to be joint city and county statements of policy, and are to be

amended by joint action.
• Where a particular “area” is not specified in the policy text, the policy will apply to all areas.

This section describes the different types of changes, the process for making changes, the criteria for 
determining which process to follow, and the procedures for approving proposed changes. The types of 
changes, when they may be considered, and whether they are subject to approval by the city (Planning 
Board and City Council), the county (County Planning Commission and County Commissioners), or the 
city and county (Planning Board, City Council, County Planning Commission, and County Commissioners) 
is summarized in the following table:  

Type of Change When Process 

Land Use Map 

If related to rezoning or 
annexation, may be considered at 

any time 
All others, at Mid-term or 5 year 

update 

City approval subject to county referral if 
meets criteria and related to annexation or 

rezoning, or in Area I  

All others, city and county approval 

Change from Area IIb to IIa May be considered at any time if 
meets criteria City approval subject to county referral 

Changes to the Area II/III 
boundary 

Mid-term (minor changes) 
5 year City and county approval 

Policies Mid-term (minor only) 
5 year 

Joint policies approved by city and county; 
city or county policies by relevant 

jurisdiction 

• Amendment Procedures
• Referral Process
• Land Use Map
• Descriptions

Mid-term 
5 year City and county approval 

• Plan and Program
Summaries

• Urban Service Criteria
and Standards

Any time City approval 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 670Packet Page 673



1. Changes that may be considered at any time
The following changes may be considered at any time and require approval by the city Planning Board and 
City Council.  

a. Types of changes that may be considered at any time if
they meet the criteria in Subsection b below:

1. Land Use Map changes
2. Changes to the Master Plan and Program summaries
3. Changes to the Urban Service Criteria and Standards
4. Changes to the Subcommunity and Area Plan section
5. Changes in designation of land from Area IIB to Area IIA

a. Criteria for eligibility for changes that may be considered at
any time:
(1) Land Use Map changes:

The Land Use Map is not intended to be a zoning map. It is intended to provide policy direction 
and definition for future land uses in the Boulder Valley. Thus, a change to the land use 
designations may be considered at any time if it is related to a proposed change in zoning or 
proposed annexation and meets all of the following criteria: 

(a) The proposed change is consistent with the policies and overall intent of the comprehensive
plan.
(b) The proposed change would not have significant cross-jurisdictional impacts that may affect
residents, properties or facilities outside the city.
(c) The proposed change would not materially affect the land use and growth projections that were
the basis of the comprehensive plan.
(d) The proposed change does not materially affect the adequacy or availability of urban facilities
and services to the immediate area or to the overall service area of the City of Boulder.
(e) The proposed change would not materially affect the adopted Capital Improvements Program
of the City of Boulder.
(f) The proposed change would not affect the Area II/Area III boundaries in the comprehensive
plan.

(2)Criteria for changes in designation of land from Area IIB to Area IIA:
(a) The proposed change is compatible with the city’s existing and planned urban facilities and service
systems, as demonstrated by such factors as:

(i) The full range of urban facilities and services are available, or will be available within three
years, as specified in the urban service standards to be provided through city capital improvements
and private investment.
(ii) The timing, design and operation of required facility and service improvements are consistent
with the city’s Capital Improvements Program, master plans and urban service standards in the
comprehensive plan.
(iii) Off-site improvements that are provided by developers ahead of scheduled capital
improvements will not result in premature demand for additional city-provided improvements.
(iv) City off-site capital facility costs to serve the property can be recovered by development
excise taxes and development exactions.

(b) The proposed change would be consistent with the city’s ability to annex within three years, as
demonstrated by such factors as:

(i) The property is currently contiguous to the city or there is a reasonable expectation of
contiguity within three years, based on expected development trends and patterns.
(ii) The public costs of annexation and development of Area IIA properties can be accommodated
within the city’s Capital Improvements Program and operating budget.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 671Packet Page 674

https://www-static.bouldercolorado.gov/docs/bvcp-land-use-designation-map-1-201305140859.pdf


(c) The proposed change would be consistent with a logical expansion of city boundaries, as 
demonstrated by such factors as: encouraging a contiguous and compact development pattern; 
encouraging infill and redevelopment or a desired opening of a new growth area; enhancing 
neighborhood boundaries or edges.  

c. Procedures for changes that may be considered at any
time:  
(1) Requests for changes may be initiated by the city or the property 
owner:  
A request initiated by the property owner must be submitted in writing to the city’s Planning Department 
and must address the criteria for processing the request separately from a mid-term or five-year review.  

(2) The city will make a referral with preliminary comments to the county 
Land Use Department for comment: 

For land use changes and changes from Area IIB to IIA, the county will have 30 days after receipt of the 
referral to provide written notice to the city as to whether the proposed change meets the criteria. If the 
county determines that the proposed change does not meet the criteria, then the requested change will be 
processed at the time of the next mid-term or five -year review and will require four body review and 
approval.  

(3) Requests for land use changes and changes from Area IIB to IIA will be 
considered based on the criteria in Section 1.b.(2) above at a public 
hearing of the city Planning Board. 

If there is an accompanying rezoning application or annexation petition, this review may be concurrent 
with consideration of those matters. Changes determined to meet the criteria in this section may still be 
deferred by the city Planning Board or City Council to the mid-term or five -year review upon a finding of 
good cause.  

2. Mid-term review changes
Changes to the comprehensive plan may be proposed in a mid-term review. A mid-term review may be 
initiated at some point between five-year major updates as needed. The purposes of the mid-term review are 
to address objectives identified in the last major update and progress made in meeting those objectives, 
provide an opportunity for the public to request changes to the plan that do not involve significant city and 
county resources to evaluate, make minor additions or clarifications to the policy section and to make minor 
adjustments to the service area boundary. The mid-term review is not intended to be a time to consider 
major policy changes.  

a. Types of changes that may be considered as part of the
mid-term review:  
The following changes to the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan may be considered at the midterm 
review:  

(1) Changes that require approval by the city Planning Board and City 
Council: 
• Land Use Map changes located in Area I subject to the criteria in Section 1.b.(1) above

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 672Packet Page 675



• Changes to the Master Plan and Program summaries
• Changes to the Urban Service Criteria and Standards
• Changes to the Subcommunity and Area Plan section
•
• Changes in designation of land from Area IIB to Area IIA subject to the criteria in Section 1.b.(2)

above

(2) Changes that require approval by the city Planning Board, City
Council, County Planning Commission and County Commissioners.
• Changes to the Land Use Map (other than those allowed by city approval in Section 2.a.(1) above)
• Changes to the Plan Amendments section
• Changes to the Land Use Map Description section
• Minor additions or clarifications to the policy section
• Minor Service Area boundary changes subject to the criteria set forth below
• Boulder Valley Planning Area expansions and contractions, i.e., changes to the Area III outer

boundary subject to the criteria set forth below.

b. Criteria for minor service area boundary changes and
Boulder Valley Planning Area expansions and contractions:

(1) Minor adjustments to the service area boundary
Minor adjustments to the service area boundary are small, incremental service area expansions that create
more logical service area boundaries. Changes in designation of land from Area III to Area II may be
eligible to be approved as a minor service area boundary adjustment based on the following criteria:

(a) Maximum size: The total size of the area must be no larger than ten acres.

(b) Minimum contiguity: The area must have a minimum contiguity with the existing service area of at
least 1/6 of the total perimeter of the area.

(c) Logical Service Area boundary: The resulting Service Area boundary must provide a more logical
Service Area boundary (Area III/II), as determined by factors such as more efficient service provision, a
more identifiable edge to the urbanized area or neighborhood, a more functional boundary based on
property ownership parcel lines or defining natural features.

(d) Compatibility with the surrounding area and the comprehensive plan: The proposed change of Area III
to II must be compatible with the surrounding area as well as the policies and overall intent of the
comprehensive plan.

(e) No major negative impacts: It must be demonstrated that no major negative impacts on transportation,
environment, services, facilities, or budget will result from an expansion of the Service Area.

(f) Minimal effect on land use and growth projections: The proposed change of Area III to II change does
not materially affect the land use and growth projections that were the basis of the Comprehensive Plan.

(g) Minimal effect on service provision: The proposed change of Area III to II does not materially affect
the adequacy or availability of urban facilities and services to the immediate area or the overall Service
Area of the City of Boulder.

(h) Minimal effect on the city’s Capital Improvements Program: The proposed Area III to II change does
not materially affect the adopted Capital Improvements Program of the City of Boulder.

(i) Appropriate timing: The proposed Area III to II change will not prematurely open up development
potential for land that logically should be considered as part of a larger Service Area expansion.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 673Packet Page 676



(2) Boulder Valley Planning Area expansions or contractions:  
An Area III outer boundary change may be initiated by the city or the county and will be approved only if it 
is demonstrated that either expansion or contraction of the planning area is needed due to changed 
circumstances or past error in determining the boundary.  

c. Procedures for changes that may be considered as part of
the mid-term review: 

(1) Prior to the beginning of the mid-term review, the city Planning Department and county Land Use
Department will establish a process and schedule for the update. This will include an opportunity for 
landowners and the general public to submit request for changes to the plan. The schedule and process 
will be revised as needed during the review process.  

(2) For those changes eligible for approval by the city Planning Board and City Council, the city Planning
Department will make a referral to the county Land Use Department for comment. For changes to the Land 
Use Map located in Area I, and changes from Area IIB to Area IIA, the county will have 30 days from the 
date of receipt of the city’s referral to provide written notice to the city if the county finds that the proposed 
change does not meet the applicable criteria for eligibility. Such finding on the part of the county will  
require that the requested change be subject to approval by each of the four bodies.  
(3) All four approval bodies will hold initial meetings with their staffs to identify changes they wish to be
considered as part of the mid-term review. Public attendance is welcomed, but review of public 
applications will not occur at this time.  
(4) Proposed changes from the public, staff and approval bodies will be reviewed by the city Planning
Department, which will prepare a recommendation in consultation with the county Land Use Department 
on whether to include each proposed change in the mid-term review. Determination of whether to include a 
proposed change will be made based upon:  
(a) consistency with the purposes of the midterm review as described in 3. above,  
(b) available resources to evaluate the proposed change (city and county staffing and budget priorities),  
(c) consistency with current BVCP policies and  
(d) compatibility with adjacent land uses and neighborhood context.  
(5) The city Planning Board will consider all requests for changes together with the staff
recommendations at a public hearing and will compile a list of proposed changes to be considered during 
the mid-term review.  
(6) Requests for changes to the comprehensive plan that affect an area designated Open Space will be
reviewed by the city Open Space Board of Trustees and the county Parks and Open Space Advisory 
Committee. The board of trustees will make a recommendation prior to any action on that change.  
(7) After a list of proposed changes to be considered during that year’s review has been determined, the
city Planning Department and county Land Use Department will study, seek appropriate public input, and 
make recommendations concerning proposed changes. The city Planning Board will then initiate the 
hearings on whether to approve, modify or deny any of the proposed changes.  

3. The five-year review
The comprehensive plan will be reviewed at least every five years for possible amendments to reflect 
changes in circumstances and community desires.  

a. Types of changes that may be considered at the five-year
review:  
Any change to the comprehensive plan may be considered at the five-year review including those that may 
be considered at other times pursuant to the provisions set forth above. However, certain kinds of changes 
will be considered only at the five-year review and must be approved by each of the four signatory bodies: 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 674Packet Page 677



the city Planning Board, City Council, County Planning Commission and County Commissioners. Those 
include:  

• Service area expansions or contractions (changes in the Area II/III boundary) that do not satisfy the
criteria for consideration as part of a mid-term review

• Area III-Rural Preservation Area expansions or contractions

• Major changes to policy sections

b. Criteria for approval for Service Area and Area III
expansions or contractions:
(1) Service Area expansions (Area III-Planning Reserve to Area II

changes)
Following preparation of a service area expansion plan (see Sections 3.c.3 below), the city and county must 
determine that the proposed change from Area III - Planning Reserve to Area II meets the following 
criteria:  
(a) Provision of a community need: Taking into consideration an identified range of desired community

needs, the proposed change must provide for a priority need that cannot be met within the existing
service area.

(b) Minimum size: In order to cohesively plan and eventually annex by neighborhoods and to build logical
increments for infrastructure, it is encouraged that the minimum size of the parcel or combined parcels for
Service Area expansion be at least forty acres.

(c) Minimum contiguity: The parcel or combined parcels for Service Area expansion must have a minimum
contiguity with the existing service area of at least 1/6 of the total perimeter of the area.

(d) Logical extension of the service area: The resulting service area boundary must be a logical extension of
the service area. Factors used in making this determination include but are not limited to an efficient
increment for extending urban services; a desirable community edge and neighborhood boundary; and a
location that contributes to the desired compact urban form.

(e) Compatibility with the surrounding area and comprehensive plan: The proposed Area III-Planning
Reserve area to Area II change must be compatible with the surrounding area and the policies and overall
intent of the comprehensive plan.

(f) No major negative impacts: The Service Area Expansion Plan must demonstrate that community
benefits outweigh development costs and negative impacts from new development and that negative
impacts are avoided or adequately mitigated. To this end, the Service Area Expansion Plan will set
conditions for new development, and it will specify the respective roles of the city and the private sector in
adequately dealing with development impacts.

(g) Appropriate timing for annexation and development: A reasonable time frame for annexation is
projected within the planning period after Area III-Planning Reserve area land is brought into the service
area.

(2) Service Area contractions (changes from Area II to Area III-Rural
Preservation Area)

Proposed changes from Area II to Area III-Rural Preservation Area must meet the following criteria: 
(a) Changed circumstances indicate either that the development of the area is no longer in the public
interest, the land has or will be purchased for open space, or, for utility-related reasons, the City of
Boulder can no longer expect to extend adequate urban facilities and services to the area within 15
years;

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 675Packet Page 678



(b) Any changes in proposed land use are compatible with the surrounding area and the policies and overall
intent of the comprehensive plan.

(3) Area III-Rural Preservation Area expansions: Expansion of the Area III-
Rural Preservation Area must meet the following criteria:
(a) There is a desire and demonstrated need for expansion of the Area III-Rural Preservation Area due to

changed circumstances, community needs, or new information on land use suitability (e.g.,
environmental resource or hazard constraints, feasibility of efficient extension of urban services, and
compact and efficient urban form).

(4) Area III-Rural Preservation Area to Area III – Planning Reserve
Changes of land from the Area III-Rural Preservation Area to the Area III-Planning Reserve Area must 
meet the following criteria: There is a demonstrated need for contraction of the Area III-Rural Preservation 
Area due to changed circumstances, community needs, or new information on land use suitability (e.g., 
environmental resource or hazard constraints, feasibility of efficient extension of urban services, and 
compact and efficient urban form); and land to be considered for a change from Area III-Rural Preservation 
Area to Area III-Planning Reserve must have a minimum contiguity with the Area III-Planning Reserve 
area or the existing service area (Area I or Area II) of at least 1/6 of the total perimeter of the area.  

c. Procedures for the five-year review:
(1) Process and schedule
Prior to the beginning of the five-year review, the city Planning Department and the county Land Use 
Department will establish a process and schedule for the update. The schedule and process will be revised 
as needed during the review process. The process will include an opportunity for landowners and the 
general public to submit requests for changes to the plan. All submittals for proposed changes will be 
reviewed at initial public hearings. Staff will provide recommendations and the approval bodies will 
provide direction on which proposals should go forward and which proposals should receive no further 
consideration. During each five-year review, the city and the county will assess whether or not the service 
area or the Area III-Rural Preservation Area should be expanded or contracted.  

(2) Expansions or contractions of Area III – Rural Preservation Area
Prior to consideration of an expansion of the Area III– Rural Preservation Area or a change from Area III-
Rural Preservation Area to Area III Planning Reserve Area, a study will be completed by the city and 
county demonstrating compliance with the criteria applicable to the proposed change. The city or the 
county will decide whether to authorize a study of the proposed change after a public hearing is held.  

(3)Changes from Area III-Planning Reserve to Area II
During each five -year review, the city and county may assess whether or not sufficient merit exists to 
authorize a service area expansion plan. The determination of sufficient merit will be based on 
demonstration that a desired community need cannot be met within the existing service area. If the city and 
county find that sufficient merit e xists, the city and county may authorize a planning effort to develop a 
joint city county service area expansion plan for the area proposed to be brought into the service area in 
consultation with Area III property owners and the public. The Service Area Expansion Plan must address 
the following:  

(a) the types of development needed to meet long term community needs;

(b) key requirements to ensure compliance with community goals and policies, and to ensure compatibility
with the existing development context and surrounding area;

(c) conceptual land use and infrastructure plan components;

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 676Packet Page 679



(d) requirements for development impact mitigation and offsets (both on-site and off-site); and

(e) development phasing.

(4) Reinstatement of Area III – Rural Preservation Area back to Area II –
Service Area

A property owner that has been moved from Area II to Area III may request that the change be reevaluated 
under the same procedures and criteria that were used to make such a change for a period ten years after the 
change was made. Thereafter, such properties will be subject to all of the procedural requirements of this 
section.  

4. Notification
a. Any property owner whose property would be affected by a proposed change in land use designation or
by service area expansions, contractions or boundary changes will receive timely written notice that such
change or changes will be considered. Planning staff will exert its best efforts to provide such notice within
30 days of receiving a request that is to be considered. However, no hearing to approve or deny any such
proposal will be held unless the affected property owner was provided with this written notice at least 30
days prior to the date set for the hearing on the proposed change.
b. General public notice of all proposed changes will be provided in the following manner. The city
Planning Department will publish a Comprehensive Plan map indicating where the proposed changes are
located and a description of each change in the newspaper at least ten days prior to the first public hearing
to consider the proposed changes.

5. Errors
If a discrepancy is found to exist within the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan that is clearly a drafting 
error or a clerical mistake, either the city or the county, after a referral request to the other agency, may 
correct such error.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 677Packet Page 680



III.Land Use Map Descriptions
The Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map provides a sketch plan of the desired 
land use pattern in the Boulder Valley. Land use categories include residential, business, 
industrial, public/semi-public, open space, and park use. The map also shows the location and 
functional classification of roads. The following descriptions are meant to be used in interpreting 
the map.  

Land Use  
Residential Land Use and Densities  
Residential land use areas on the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan, for the most part, reflect 
the existing land use pattern or current zoning for an area. The highest density areas are generally 
located close to the University of Colorado or in areas planned for transit oriented redevelopment. 
Medium density areas are generally situated near community shopping areas or along some of the 
major arterials of the city. Mixed density areas surround the downtown and are located in some 
areas planned for new development. Lower density areas in the older section of the city consist 
predominantly of single-family detached structures. Many of the areas developed in the city and 
the county over the last 30 years are characterized by a mixture of housing types ranging from 
single-family detached to cluster and patio homes, townhouses and apartments. A variety of 
housing types will continue to be encouraged in developing areas during the planning period of 
the Comprehensive Plan.  

Residential densities under the Comprehensive Plan range from very low density (two units or 
less per acre); low density (two to six units per acre); medium density (six to 14 units per acre); to 
high density (more than 14 units per acre). It is assumed that variations of the densities on a small 
area basis may occur within any particular classification, but an average density will be 
maintained for that classification.  

Additionally, in older downtown neighborhoods that were developed with single family homes 
but for a time were zoned for higher densities, a variety of housing types and densities are found 
within a single block. The city’s goal is to preserve current neighborhood character and mix of 
housing types, and not exacerbate traffic and parking problems. Some new housing units may be 
added. The average density in the downtown neighborhoods designated mixed density is in the 
medium density range (six to 14 units per acre). The mixed density designation is also applied in 
some areas planned for new development where the goal is to provide a substantial amount of 
affordable housing in mixed density neighborhoods that have a variety of housing types and 
densities. The density in the mixed density designation in newly developing areas is from six to 
18 units per acre.  

The manufactured housing designation is applied to existing mobile home parks. The intent of the 
designation is to preserve the affordable housing provided by the existing mobile home parks.  

Within certain residential areas, there is also the potential for limited small neighborhood 
shopping facilities, offices or services through special review.  

Mixed Use-Residential development may be deemed appropriate and will be encouraged in some 
residential areas. These areas may be designated Mixed Use-Residential. In these areas, 
residential character will predominate, although neighborhood scale retail and personal service 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 678Packet Page 681



uses will be allowed. Specific zoning and other regulations will be adopted which define the 
desired intensity, mix, location and design characteristics of these uses.  

Business Land Use and Intensity 
Within the Boulder Valley there are five categories of business land use, based on the intensity of 
development and the particular needs of the residents living in each subcommunity. The five 
categories are: Regional, Community, General, Transitional and Mixed Use-Business.  

The two major Regional Business areas of the Boulder Valley are the Downtown and the 
Crossroads Area. Within these areas are located the major shopping facilities, offices, financial
institutions, and government and cultural facilities serving the entire Boulder Valley and 
neighboring communities. These areas will continue to be refurbished and upgraded and will 
remain the dominant focus for major business activities in the region.

A Community Business area is the focal point for commercial activity serving a subcommunity or 
a collection of neighborhoods. These are designated to serve the daily convenience shopping and 
service needs of the local populations and are generally less than 150,000 to 200,000 square feet 
in area. Offices within the Community Business areas should be offices designated specifically for 
residents of the subcommunity. Where feasible, multiple uses will be encouraged within these 
centers.

The General Business areas are located, for the most part, at junctions of major arterials of the 
city where intensive commercial uses exist. The plan proposes that these areas continue to be 
used without expanding the strip character already established.  

The Transitional Business designation is shown along certain major streets. These are areas 
usually zoned for less intensive business uses than in the General Business areas, and they often 
provide a transition to residential areas.  

Mixed Use-Business development may be deemed appropriate and will be encouraged in some 
business areas. These areas may be designated Mixed Use-Business where business or residential 
character will predominate. Housing and public uses supporting housing will be encouraged and 
may be required. Specific zoning and other regulations will be adopted which define the desired 
intensity, mix, location and design characteristics of these uses.  

Service Commercial areas provide a wide range of community and regional retail and service 
uses generally not accommodated in core commercial areas and which generally require 
automotive access for customer convenience and the servicing of vehicles.

Industrial Land Use and Intensity  
The Comprehensive Plan projects four classifications of industrial use within the Boulder Valley: 
General, Community, Light, and Mixed Use-Industrial.  

The General Industrial classification is shown where the more intensive and heavy industries are 
located or planned.

The Community Industrial classification is shown for those areas where the predominant uses 
provide a direct service to the planning area. These uses often have ancillary commercial activity 
and are essential to the life of the Boulder community. These uses include smaller scale auto-

67

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 679Packet Page 682



related uses, small printing operations, building contractors, building supply warehouses, small 
manufacturing operations and similar uses.  

The industrial uses considered as ‘Light’ on the Comprehensive Plan are primarily research 
and development, light manufacturing, large scale printing and publishing, electronics, or 
other intensive employment uses. These uses are concentrated primarily in ‘industrial parks’ 
located within the Gunbarrel area along the Longmont Diagonal, and along Arapahoe 
Avenue between 33rd and 55th streets.  

Mixed Use-Industrial development may be deemed appropriate and will be encouraged in 
some industrial areas where industrial character will predominate. Housing compatible with 
and appropriate to the industrial character will be encouraged and may be required. 
Neighborhood retail and service uses may be allowed. Specific zoning and other regulations 
will be adopted which define the desired intensity, mix, location and design characteristics of 
these uses.  

Public/Semi-Public Land Use Designations  
Public/Semi-Public land use designations encompass a wide range of public and private non-
profit uses that provide a community service. This category includes municipal and public 
utility services such as the municipal airport, water reservoirs, and water and wastewater 
treatment plants. Public/Semi-Public also includes: educational facilities, including public 
and private schools and the university; government offices such as city and county buildings, 
libraries, and the jail; government laboratories; and nonprofit facilities such as cemeteries, 
churches, hospitals, retirement complexes and may include other uses as allowed by zoning.  

Agriculture Land Use Designation  
An Agriculture land use designation identifies land in the Service Area that is planned to 
remain in agricultural use. Uses that are auxiliary to agriculture, such as a home, a barn and 
outbuildings and the incidental sales of farm or horticultural products are expected on land 
with this designation. Given the urban nature of Boulder, the designation will be used rarely.  

Environmental Preservation  
The Environmental Preservation designation includes private lands in Areas I and II with 
environmental values that the city and county would like to preserve through a variety of 
preservation methods including but not limited to intergovernmental agreements, 
dedications, development restrictions, rezonings, acquisitions, and density transfers.  

Natural Ecosystem Overlay  
In order to encourage environmental preservation, a Natural Ecosystem overlay is applied over 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designations throughout the Boulder Valley Planning Area. 
Natural ecosystems are defined as areas that support native plants and animals or possess 
important ecological, biological or geological values that represent the rich natural history of the 
Boulder Valley. The Natural Ecosystems overlay also identifies connections and buffers that are 
important for sustaining biological diversity and viable habitats for native species, for protecting 
the ecological health of certain natural systems, and to buffer potential impacts from adjacent 
land uses.  

A Natural Ecosystems overlay will not necessarily preclude development or human use of a 
particular area or supersede any other land use designation but will serve to identify certain 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 680Packet Page 683



2010 Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan 

environmental issues in the area. The overlay will serve to guide the city and the county in 
decisions about public acquisition, purchase of development rights or conservation easements, 
promotion of private land conservation practices, density transfers, rezonings, development 
review, annexations and initial zonings, rezonings, service area boundary changes, and 
subcommunity and departmental master planning.  

A description of the criteria used to identify lands suitable for a Natural Ecosystems designation 
can be found in the environmental resources element of the plan on the web at: 
www.bouldervalleycompplan.net.  

Open Space and Parks  
Open Space  
Open Space designations on the Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan Map include the following 
three categories of land:  
Open Space - Acquired: Land already acquired by the city or Boulder County for open space 

purposes;  
Open Space - Development Restrictions: Privately owned land with conservation easements or 

other development restrictions; and  
Open Space - Other: Other public and private land designated prior to 1981 that the city and 

county would like to preserve through various preservation methods including but not limited 
to intergovernmental agreements, dedications or acquisitions.  

Open Space designations are not intended to limit acquisition, but to be indicative of the broad 
goals of the program. Other property that meets Open Space purposes and functions should be 
considered and may be acquired. Open Space designations indicate that the long-term use of the 
land is planned to serve one or more open space functions. However, Open Space designations 
may not reflect the current use of the land while in private ownership.  

Urban and Other Parks  
Urban and Other Parks includes public lands used for a variety of active and passive recreational 
purposes. Urban parks provided by the city include pocket parks, neighborhood parks, 
community parks and city parks as defined in the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. The specific 
characteristics of each park depend on the type of park, size, topography and neighborhood 
preferences. Neighborhood parks typically provide a children’s playground, picnic facilities, 
benches, walkways, landscaped areas and multi-use open grass areas. Other park uses may 
include recreational facilities such as basketball or tennis courts, community gardens and natural 
areas. There are three community park sites (Harlow Platts, East Boulder and Foothills) that are 
fully or partially developed. Large multi-use city parks are planned for two locations: 1) the 
Valmont Park site and 2) the Area III - Planning Reserve site, which will be held to meet future 
recreational needs. The Boulder Reservoir is a regional park that provides opportunities for 
fishing, swimming, boating, picnicking, etc. Other public recreational facilities, including city 
recreation centers, a golf course, swimming pools, ballfields, and the Eldorado Canyon State Park 
are also included in this category.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 681Packet Page 684

http://www.bouldercolorado.gov/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=2504&Itemid=2019


Part 3: 
REQUESTS 

(including staff review and 
original submitted requests)

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 682Packet Page 685



1)1)
2130 Arapahoe Ave. 
(Naropa University) – 
HR to PUB 
& 
6287 Arapahoe Ave. 
(Naropa University) – 
CI to CB

AREA I AND AREA II ENCLAVES: 
15 Requests

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 683Packet Page 686



Request #1 
2130 & 6287 Arapahoe Ave. 
Initiated by owner (Naropa University) 

Request: 
1) Change the BVCP land use designation of
2130 Arapahoe Ave. from High Density 
Residential (HR) to Public (PUB) and 2) 
change the BVCP land use designation of 
6287 Arapahoe Ave. from Community 
Industrial (CI) to Community Business (CB).

          2130 Arapahoe 
Staff Recommendation: Yes 

Staff recommends that this request be 
considered further as part of the 2015 BVCP 
major update for the following reasons: 

1. The requested land use designation
change should be considered further 
relative to the forthcoming master 
plan for Naropa University and the 
update to the comprehensive plan. 

2. The request is consistent with current
BVCP policies.          6287 Arapahoe 

ANALYSIS:  

1.) Consistent with the purposes of the major update? 
Yes.  This is a land use designation change request, which is consistent with the purposes of the BVCP 
major update.  

2.) Consistent with current policies in the BVCP or relevant subcommunity or area plans? 
With respect to 2130 Arapahoe Ave., the request is consistent with Policy 5.17 – Diverse Workforce, 
Education and Training to “support the Boulder Valley School District as well as the 
variety of post-secondary educational institutions to offer quality continuing education . . .” 

With respect to 6287 Arapahoe Ave., the request is consistent with numerous BVCP policies. Policy 5.01 
- Revitalizing Commercial and Industrial Areas identifies the East Boulder Industrial Area as an example 
of an identified area for revitalization. In addition, Policy 2.22 - Improve Mobility Grid calls for 
supporting parts of the city in need of connectivity and mobility, including East Boulder, through 
coordinated land use and transportation planning. The requested land use change would allow for an 
increased range of uses for the community, which in turn could generate more activity in the area and thus 
support prospective transportation improvements along East Arapahoe. 

3.) Compatible with adjacent land uses and neighborhood context? 
The compatibility of the requested land use changes needs further analysis. The land use and zoning 
designations on these properties have created challenges for the evolving uses of Naropa University as a 
post-secondary educational institution. The future uses of the university, as addressed through their 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 684Packet Page 687



master planning process, and the compatibility of these uses with adjacent land uses and neighborhood 
context should be considered as part of next phase of BVCP land use amendment process.  

4.) Was the proposed change requested or considered as part of a recent update to the Comp 
Plan or other planning process? 

No. However, Naropa University is currently undergoing a master planning process. 

5.)  Is there any change in circumstances, community needs, or new information that would 
warrant the proposal be considered as part of this update? 

Naropa University is over-programmed for its current space and is therefore considering its future 
planning needs.  

6.) Are there enough available resources to evaluate the proposed change (city and county 
staffing and budget priorities)?  

Yes. Staff does not anticipate that the evaluation of this request will require substantial resources. The 
master planning process that Naropa University is currently undertaking will serve as the foundation for 
review of the proposed land use designation changes.   

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 685Packet Page 688



• 
O RL 

OU F 

GACY 
URE. 

BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

2015 MAJOR UPDATE: 

REQUEST FOR REVISION 

1) Type of Amendment (check all that apply):

Land Use Map Amendment 

Changes to the Area 11/111 boundary 

Service Area contractions or Minor Changes to the Service Area Boundary 

Other Map Amendment 

2) Please provide the following information

a. Brief description of the proposed amendment:

(D�f.lAc:v ev0� of fvw:_ yvVfe-<h-CS fvoVV) }-/tLv'tJfA

v .,e I t7'v� � -f-Uh v L ? l CW\V\ W'j Y\U'.dt 5 ---

b. Brief reason or justification for the proposed amendment)

C � �t-f � h to it W-euf-r CLtv1 I 
1
.po �� V{/1 ifJ 0A \ _

-e AAAcA�\/\c£ 1l1, c: T _ -\--- f\__\a_ � fA s t() �q,� s VV\ 4-niv

w�t- lo(t,{.;�S-
a. Map(s) proposed for amendment: &t(( (A J& � -
b. Brief description of location of proposed amendment:

Section: _____ Township: _____ Range:------

c. Size of parcel: _________________________ _

BVCP 2015 Major Update 2/4 Request for Revision 

Staff note: upon further discussion with Naropa University , three of the 
five properties were withdrawn from this process. 2130 and 6287 
Arapahoe Ave. are the remaining properties for consideration of this 
re quest.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 686Packet Page 689



OUR 

• BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

3) Applicant:

Name:-+---'-N�a l{
-+
O?_tj..___----_�_�_()_\ rh_c�_e<l->--.;.c_f!Y1_J1---'--'-{ _ 

Aoro () C bo� -Address: 

4) Owner:

N Name: _
__:.__a�_D-1--pOl,, ______ _ 

Address: 

Address: 

6) Does the applicant have a development application or some interest in a property that in any
manner would be affected by this amendment proposal? {If yes. please explain):

BVCP 2015 Major Update 3/4 Request for Revision 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 687Packet Page 690



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 688Packet Page 691



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 689Packet Page 692



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 690Packet Page 693



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 691Packet Page 694



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 692Packet Page 695



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 693Packet Page 696



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 694Packet Page 697



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 695Packet Page 698



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 696Packet Page 699



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 697Packet Page 700



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 698Packet Page 701



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 699Packet Page 702



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 700Packet Page 703



2) 350 Broadway – LR to TB

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 701Packet Page 704



Request #2 
350 Broadway (and adjacent Lots 2, 3, 4, 5 
of Penfold-Telleen Subdivision) 
Initiated by owner 

Request: 
Change the BVCP land use designation from 
Low Density Residential (LR) to Transitional 
Business (TB) to more accurately reflect the 
medical and dental office use in place since 
the building’s original construction in 1960.   

Staff Recommendation: No 
Staff recommends that this request not be 
considered further as part of the 2015 BVCP 
major update for the following reasons:  

1. The medical and dental office use may continue in perpetuity as a legal nonconforming use
subject to the city’s Nonconformance Standards.  BRC Sec. 9-10-3 provides a process for 
changes to the building in the future. 

2. The request does not indicate that the zoning and BVCP designation have acted as a barrier
toward the continued use of the property as medical and dental office. 

3. The request would increase intensity of use in an established low density residential
neighborhood. 

ANALYSIS:  

1.) Consistent with the purposes of the major update? 
Yes.  This is a land use designation change request, which is consistent with the purposes of the BVCP 
major update.  

2.) Consistent with current policies in the BVCP or relevant subcommunity or area plans? 
The request may be consistent with some current BVCP policies with regards to encouraging a mix of 
uses on transit corridors. As described in the BVCP, the transitional business designation is typically 
located along a major street and provides a transition to the neighboring residential area. Based on a 
cursory staff analysis, in most cases, however, the neighboring residential area that borders on a 
transitional business BVCP land use is of medium, mixed, or high density, and not a low density 
residential use. The request may therefore be inconsistent with some BVCP policies around compatibility 
with the existing adjacent low density residential neighborhood, e.g. Policy 2.13 – Protection of 
Residential Neighborhoods Adjacent to Non-residential Zones and Policy 2.15 – Compatibility of 
Adjacent Land Uses. 

3.) Compatible with adjacent land uses and neighborhood context? 
See #2 above regarding neighborhood context. This site is part of an established residential neighborhood 
and the proposed land use would increase intensity of use on the site. 

4.) Was the proposed change requested or considered as part of a recent update to the Comp 
Plan or other planning process? 

The proposed change has not been part of a recent comprehensive plan update.  

5.)  Is there any change in circumstances, community needs, or new information that would 
warrant the proposal be considered as part of this update? 

No. There have not been any recent changes in this area, nor are there any articulated in the request that 
would warrant the proposal be considered as part of this update.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 702Packet Page 705



6.) Are there enough available resources to evaluate the proposed change (city and county 
staffing and budget priorities)?  

This request would require a moderate to significant amount of staff time. Analysis of the surrounding 
area and the impact of potentially allowing for uses in the Transitional Business category absent a broader 
neighborhood discussion about density/intensity would require careful consideration. 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 703Packet Page 706



BVCP 2015 Major Update 2/4 Request for Revision 

BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
2015 MAJOR UPDATE : 

REQUEST FOR REVISION 

1) Type of Amendment (check all that apply):

_____ Land Use Map Amendment

_____ Changes to the Area II/III boundary 

_____ Service Area contractions or Minor Changes to the Service Area Boundary 

_____ Other Map Amendment  

2) Please provide the following information

a. Brief description of the proposed amendment:

b. Brief reason or justification for the proposed amendment:

a. Map(s) proposed for amendment: ___________________________________________________

b. Brief description of location of proposed amendment:

Section: ____________  Township: ____________ Range: ______________ 

c. Size of parcel: ___________________________________________________________________

South Boulder

6 1 70 W
49,200 plus approx 24,283 (adjacent lots)

✔

350 Broadway - change designation to Transitional Business

The property has been a medical/dental professional office since 1960.

350 Broadway, and adjacent Lots 2, 3, 4, 5 of Penfold-Telleen Subdivision

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A    Page 704Packet Page 707



BVCP 2015 Major Update 3/4 Request for Revision 

3) Applicant:

Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

Address:  

Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 

4) Owner:

Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

Address:  

Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 

5) Representative/Contact:

Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

Address:  

Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 

6) Does the applicant have a development application or some interest in a property that in any
manner would be affected by this amendment proposal? (If yes, please explain):

Flatirons Medical Dental LLC

303-494-3535

Flatirons Medical Dental LLC

303-494-3535

Maureen Eldredge, Hutchinson, Black and Cook

303-442-6514

350 Broadway, Suite 120, Boulder, CO 80305

350 Broadway, Suite 120, Boulder, CO 80305

921 Walnut Street, Suite 200, Boulder, CO 80302

Applicant owns the 350 Broadway property and has a permanent easement across

the adjacent lots.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A    Page 705Packet Page 708



{W0963175 MEE} 

Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan 

Request for Revision 

Land Use Map Amendment 

Applicant and Owner: Flatirons Medical Dental LLC (“Applicant”) 

Location: 350 Broadway, Boulder, CO 

Requested Land Use Designation:  Transition-Business 

Representative: Maureen Eldredge, Hutchinson, Black and Cook, LLC 
Ph: 303-442-6514
Email: eldredge@hbcboulder.com 

Attachments: Exhibit A – Detailed Map of Property (Improvement Location Certificate) 
Exhibit B – Location Map (BVCP designations shown) 
Exhibit C – Location Map (aerial photo) 
Exhibit D – Permanent Easement  

I. Background and Description of the Property 

The property is a two-story medical/dental office building located at 350 Broadway, Boulder, Colorado (the 
“Property”).  The Property was originally constructed in 1960, prior to the implementation of the BVCP 
and prior to the imposition of city zoning, as a medical/dental office building.  It has been operated 
continuously as a medical/dental office building since that time.  Currently, the building is home to four 
dental practices; two suites providing mental health services; a pharmacy; a podiatry office; physical 
therapy clinic; a fertility clinic; and a medical clinic for the University of Colorado hospital.   

The Applicant owns the Property, shown as Parcel I on the attached Exhibit A.  Applicant also has an 
easement over the adjacent Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5, Penfold-Telleen Subdivision, for parking and a driveway, 
pursuant to a permanent easement granted by the City of Boulder in 1978, Reception No. 275131 (attached 
as Exhibit D).   

The Property is bordered on two sides by 27th Way and Broadway.  This corner has developed, since 1960, 
into a commercial/mixed-use area serving the needs of Boulder and the surrounding community.  To the 
immediate north is a large Park-n-Ride, serving RTD commuters and the multi-family units along 27th Way, 
with the Whole Foods shopping complex a bit further north.  Across Broadway is the large government 
complex of NIST, and another medical/dental practice to the north of NIST.   

II. Justification for the Proposal

Somewhat remarkably for Boulder, this Property has had substantially the same type and character of use 
since its original construction in 1960.  However, the Property is designated as Low Density Residential in 
the BVCP.  It is unclear why the Property was designated as residential, when its use as a medical/dental 
office building was in existence at least ten (10) years prior any comprehensive planning, and 17 years prior 
to the legacy BVCP, and has been used as a medical/dental office building for 55 years.  While we cannot 
know the historical reasoning, what we can see is that this Property, like other areas along Broadway, 
developed, not as low-density residential, but as a vibrant business serving Boulder and the surrounding 
neighborhoods, and providing a buffer to the high-traffic area of Broadway.   

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 706Packet Page 709



Flatirons Medical Dental Land Use Map Amendment 
Page 2 

{W0963175 MEE}

The Applicant would like to bring the land use designation in line with the long-standing use of the Property 
and correct what appears to be a historical error in the designation.  The Applicant intends to continue 
operating the Property as a medical/dental office building, and does not anticipate any change in use.  The 
Applicant requests a change to the designated land use to Transition-Business, to reflect the current and 
anticipated use of the Property. 

III. Relationship to the Goals and Policies of the BVCP

The BVCP is intended to guide decisions about growth and development in the City of Boulder and Boulder 
County.  This Property has been used as a home for medical and dental practices for 55 years.  It has 
provided, and continues to provide, an important community resource for Boulder residents and also a 
buffer from Broadway for the residential development east of the Property.  The proposed change to 
Transition-Business reflects the existing development and use of the Property and surrounding area.   

In particular, the designation of the Property as Transition-Business supports the goals set forth in Section 
2.09 of the BVCP (Neighborhood as a Building Block).  The Property has served the community as a 
medical/dental office building since 1960.  It has provided services to generations of Boulderites, as a 
distinctive community business, on a commercially developed corner that would otherwise have little value. 

Additionally, it is contiguous with the development between Broadway and Baseline, including the 
neighboring uses across Broadway and north of 27th Way.  There is walking access between these locations 
and businesses, supporting efforts to create compact development, a goal under Section 2.03.   

Changing the land use designation to Transition-Business supports the goals under Section 2.14 of the 
BVCP, for complimentary mixed uses.  The Property has, for several decades, not only provided services 
to the surrounding community, but also provided a buffer against traffic noise from Broadway.  It is the 
ideal type of use for this corner.  The Property would not be well-suited for low-density residential, due to 
the traffic light on the corner, heavy traffic on Broadway, and the RTD parking lot to the north.  It is very 
well suited for a business use related to needed community services. 

Finally, a change in land use designation to Transition-Business supports the goals identified in Section 
5.05, Support for Local Business and Business Retention.  There has been a medical/dental office building 
at this location since 1960.  The building houses a wide diversity of health-related practices and businesses. 
Supporting the business character of this corner is crucial to ensuring the longevity and retention of this 
business use, which not only serves community needs, but also provides a substantial number of local jobs. 

IV. Criteria for Land Use Map Changes

The proposed change in designation meets the criteria as set forth in the BVCP.  The change to Transition-
Business meets the goals and policies of the BVCP as described above.  This use has been present and 
active at the Property for 55 years.  Bringing the Land Use Map into alignment with this pre-existing use 
would not significantly impact other jurisdictions, nor would it materially affect land use and growth 
projections.  This area has become, over the past 55 years, a Transition-Business area and it is unlikely to 
ever become residential given current development trends.  The change would not impact availability of 
services, in fact it would help preserve an existing service of medical/dental practices serving the 
community.  It would not result in any change to Area boundaries or impact capital improvement 
requirements. 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 707Packet Page 710



Flatirons Medical Dental Land Use Map Amendment 
Page 3 

{W0963175 MEE}

V. Additional Information 

The Applicant seeks a change to the land use designation for the property owned by the Applicant, as well 
as the adjacent land, owned by the City of Boulder (Lots 2, 3, 4, an 5), over which Applicant has a permanent 
easement.  An additional portion of Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5 is used for a public road, 27th Way.   

The Applicant does not intend to change the current use of the Property, and will continue to own and rent 
the Property, for medical and dental practices.   

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 708Packet Page 711



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 709Packet Page 712



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 710Packet Page 713



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 711Packet Page 714



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 712Packet Page 715



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 713Packet Page 716



1

Zacharias,  Caitlin

From: Ellis,  Lesli
Sent: Tuesday, September 08, 2015 2:32 PM
To: Zacharias,  Caitlin
Subject: FW: 350 Broadway

Hi Caitlin – Might you be able to respond to this question?  Thanks!  Lesli 

From: Maureen Eldredge [mailto:Eldredge@hbcboulder.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, September 8, 2015 12:42 PM 
To: Ellis, Lesli 
Subject: 350 Broadway 

Dear Ms. Ellis, 
Kevin Muller at the Planning Office recommended I contact you regarding the property at 350 Broadway.  My client, 
Flatirons Medical Dental, LLC, is the owner of that property.  It has been used as a medical/dental professional office 
building since it was constructed in 1960, however the zoning and underlying comprehensive land use plan designation 
for the property is low‐density residential.  My client would like to get the zoning and BVCP designation corrected to 
match the long‐standing use of the property, which pre‐dates both the comp plan and the zoning ordinance.   

The draft maps for the BVCP update appear to show commercial use for this property.  I am not sure if this reflects 
something that is being considered as part of the comp plan update, or just actual uses.  Can you give me a call to 
discuss what the best process would be for my client to get the BVCP and zoning designations revised to reflect the 
actual use?  Kevin was not sure if we needed to submit a BVCP change as part of the BVCP update process first, and then 
zoning, or whether these two changes would be processed simultaneously. 

Thanks for any assistance you can provide to help us navigate the process. 

Regards 
Maureen 

MAUREEN E. ELDREDGE, Attorney at Law
Hutchinson Black and Cook, LLC
921 Walnut Street | Suite 200 | Boulder, CO 80302
T 303.442.6514 | F 303.442.6593
eldredge@HBCboulder.com | www.HBCboulder.com | http://www.hbcboulder.com/ebrochure.pdf

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message is confidential and may be privileged. If you believe that this email has been sent to you in error, please let me know 
that you received the message in error; then please delete these e-mails.  Thank you. 

Note: the draft maps referred to in this e-mail regard the existing 
land use map in the South Boulder subcommunity fact sheet

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 714Packet Page 717



3) 385 Broadway – TB to LR

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 715Packet Page 718



 

Request #3 
385 Broadway  
Initiated by member of the public 
 
Request: 
Change the BVCP land use designation from 
Transitional Business (TB) to Low Density 
Residential (LR).   
 
Staff Recommendation: Yes 
Staff recommends that this request be 
considered further as part of the 2015 BVCP 
major update for the following reason:  

1. On December 1, 2015, City Council unanimously denied a request to rezone the property from 
Residential Low-1 (RL-1) to Business Transitional-2 (BT-2), which is the zoning district that 
aligns with the comprehensive plan land use designation. The decision indicates a need to further 
analyze the current BVCP land use designation of Transitional Business. 

 
ANALYSIS:   
 
1.) Consistent with the purposes of the major update? 
Yes.  This is a land use designation change request, which is consistent with the purposes of the BVCP 
Major Update.  
 
2.) Consistent with current policies in the BVCP or relevant subcommunity or area plans? 
The December 1, 2015 council decision indicates a need for analysis of options to change the current 
BVCP land use designation. The primary issues cited were uncertainty over future access to the property 
(i.e., whether or not it would come from/through the NIST property to the south or the neighborhood to 
the west), and related incompatibility with the surrounding neighborhood.  
 
3.) Compatible with adjacent land uses and neighborhood context? 
See #2 above.  
 
4.) Was the proposed change requested or considered as part of a recent update to the Comp 

Plan or other planning process? 
The 2008 BVCP update implemented the current BVCP land use designation, primarily to address the 
existing nonresidential use while providing a buffer to the surrounding low density neighborhood. City 
Council recently denied case no. LUR2015-00047 to rezone the property from RL-1 to BT-2. 
 
5.)  Is there any change in circumstances, community needs, or new information that would 

warrant the proposal be considered as part of this update? 
Yes. The denial by City Council of case no. LUR2015-00047 to rezone the property from RL-1 to BT-2 
represents a changed circumstance.  
 
6.) Are there enough available resources to evaluate the proposed change (city and county 

staffing and budget priorities)?  
This request would require a moderate amount of staff time. Analysis of the surrounding area, future 
access alternatives, and overall implications on BVCP policies will need to be carefully considered. 
 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 716Packet Page 719



BVCP 2015 Major Update 2/4 Request for Revision 

BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
2015 MAJOR UPDATE : 

REQUEST FOR REVISION 

1) Type of Amendment (check all that apply):

 
_____ Land Use Map Amendment

_____ Changes to the Area II/III boundary 

_____ Service Area contractions or Minor Changes to the Service Area Boundary 

_____ Other Map Amendment  

2) Please provide the following information

a. Brief description of the proposed amendment:

b. Brief reason or justification for the proposed amendment:

a. Map(s) proposed for amendment: ___________________________________________________

b. Brief description of location of proposed amendment:

Section: ____________  Township: ____________ Range: ______________ 

c. Size of parcel: ___________________________________________________________________

BVCP Map

06 1S 70
1.01 acres

✔

Land use map change from Transitional Business - TB, to Low Density
Residential - LR. (The majority of the site is currently TB with a LR buffer on the
west and north portions. This change would return the entire site to LR.)

The 2008 land use change for this property was an anomaly.  The change was made
without careful consideration of the long term impacts of the TB development potential.
LR is consistent with the BVCP goals and policies for this neighborhood.

385 Broadway, also known as 385 South Broadway, Boulder, Colorado

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A    Page 717Packet Page 720



BVCP 2015 Major Update 3/4 Request for Revision 
   

 

 
3) Applicant:   

 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
4) Owner:   

 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

5) Representative/Contact: 
 
  Name: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 

6) Does the applicant have a development application or some interest in a property that in any 
manner would be affected by this amendment proposal? (If yes, please explain): 

 

Chuck Palmer

303-718-4792

385 Broadway LLC

Patty Angerer

303-449-0968

2270 Bluebell Ave, Boulder, CO

734 Maxwell Ave, Boulder, CO

2225 Bluebell Ave, Boulder, CO

No. The applicant is representing the residents of Lower Bluebell Ave. and
Sunnyside Lane, which are properties directly to the north and west of 385
Broadway.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 718Packet Page 721



1 |  385 Broadway 

 NARRATIVE ADDRESSING THE DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

1) REASON OR JUSTIFICATION FOR PROPOSAL

From the time of platting, Lots 26, 27, and 28 of the Oak Park Subdivision were zoned residential.  In 

1957 a small non-conforming office building was constructed and the site collectively became known as 

385 Broadway.  In 1970 it was designated Low-Density Residential - LR in the BVCP.   

In 2008 the then owner requested that the BVCP land-use designation be changed to BT.  The 

neighborhood was agreeable to the land use change because we were led to believe that the 

medical/dental building could not be updated because of the residential designation.  The BVCP map 

was changed for a specific use for a specific property owner, but did not further the goals of the 

comprehensive plan. 

We are asking for the change back to the original LR, which matches the neighborhood and protects the 

neighborhood from intense allowed “by right” development.  

2) RELATIONSHIP TO GOALS AND POLICIES OF THE BOULDER V ALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

There were no BVCP goals or policies sited to support the Land Use change from Residential to Business 

in 2008. 

The current request, to reinstate the Low Density Residential designation, is supported by the following 

BVCP policies: 

1.29 Channeling Development to Areas with Adequate Infrastructure 

In order to protect and use past investments in capital improvements, new development and 

redevelopment will be located in areas where adequate public services and facilities presently exist or 

are planned to be provided under the city's Capital Improvements Program.  

2.09 Neighborhoods as Building Blocks 

The city and county will foster the role of neighborhoods to establish community character, provide 

services needed on a day-to-day basis, foster community interaction, and plan for urban design and 

amenities. All neighborhoods, whether residential areas, business districts, or mixed land use areas, 

should offer unique physical elements of neighborhood character and identity, such as distinctive 

development patterns or architecture; historic or cultural resources; amenities such as views, open 

space, creeks, irrigation ditches, and varied topography; and distinctive community facilities and 

business areas.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 719Packet Page 722



2 |  385 Broadway 

 

2.10 Preservation and Support for Residential Neighborhoods  

The city will work with neighborhoods to protect and enhance neighborhood character and livability and 

preserve the relative affordability of existing housing stock. The city will seek appropriate building scale 

and compatible character in new development or redevelopment, appropriately sized and sensitively 

designed streets and desired public facilities and mixed commercial uses. The city will also encourage 

neighborhood schools and safe routes to school.  

2.13 Protection of Residential Neighborhoods Adjacent to Non-residential Zones  

The city and county will take appropriate actions to ensure that the character and livability of 

established residential neighborhoods will not be undermined by spill-over impacts from adjacent 

regional or community business zones or by incremental expansion of business activities into residential 

areas. The city and county will protect residential neighborhoods from intrusion of non-residential uses 

by protecting edges and regulating the impacts of these uses on neighborhoods.  

2.14 Mix of Complementary Land Uses  

The city and county will strongly encourage, consistent with other land use policies, a variety of land 

uses in new developments. In existing neighborhoods, a mix of land use types, housing sizes and lot sizes 

may be possible if properly mitigated and respectful of neighborhood character. Wherever land uses are 

mixed, careful design will be required to ensure compatibility, accessibility and appropriate transitions 

between land uses that vary in intensity and scale.  

2.15 Compatibility of Adjacent Land Uses  

To avoid or minimize noise and visual conflicts between adjacent land uses that vary widely in use, 

intensity or other characteristics, the city will use tools such as interface zones, transitional areas, site 

and building design and cascading gradients of density in the design of subareas and zoning districts. 

With redevelopment, the transitional area should be within the zone of more intense use.  

2.30 Sensitive Infill and Redevelopment  

With little vacant land remaining in the city, most new development will occur through redevelopment.  

The city will gear subcommunity and area planning and other efforts toward defining the acceptable 

amount of infill and redevelopment and standards and performance measures for design quality to 

avoid or adequately mitigate negative impacts and enhance the benefits of infill and redevelopment to 

the community and individual neighborhoods. The city will also develop tools, such as neighborhood 

design guidelines, to promote sensitive infill and redevelopment. 

 

 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 720Packet Page 723



3 |  385 Broadway 

LOCATION MAP 385 Broadway 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 721Packet Page 724



4 |  385 Broadway 

CURRENT 
BVCP LAND USE MAP 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 722Packet Page 725



5 |  385 Broadway 

 

  
 

 

 

 

CURRENT ZONING 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 723Packet Page 726



6 |  385 Broadway 

 385 BROADWAY 
Looking west from Broadway 

AERIAL VIEW 
385 BROADWAY 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 724Packet Page 727



4) 3303 Broadway –
PUB to MR or HR

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 725Packet Page 728



Request #4 
3303 Broadway  
Initiated by applicant for case no. 
LUR2015-00058 

Request: 
Change the BVCP land use designation from 
Public (PUB) to either a Medium (MR) or 
High (HR) density residential, with the 
applicant expressing flexibility to determine 
the appropriate use of the site.  

Staff Recommendation: Yes 
Staff recommends that this request be 
considered further as part of the 2015 BVCP 
major update for the following reasons:  

1. The current land use designation of Public is inconsistent with the property owner’s interest in
selling the property for private development. 

2. On October 1, 2015, Planning Board indicated that a context-sensitive medium density
designation could potentially be supportable on this site, as part of case no. LUR2015-00058.  

ANALYSIS:  

1.) Consistent with the purposes of the major update? 
Yes.  This is a land use designation change request, which is consistent with the purposes of the BVCP 
major update.  

2.) Consistent with current policies in the BVCP or relevant subcommunity or area plans? 
The request is consistent with several BVCP policies, including: Policy 7.06 - Mixture of Housing Types, 
“to provide and maintain a mixture of housing types . . . to meet the housing needs of the full range of the 
Boulder Valley population” and Policy - 2.16 Mixed Use and Higher Density Development, which 
encourages “well-designed mixed use and higher density development that incorporates a substantial 
amount of affordable housing in appropriate locations, including . . . in proximity to multimodal 
corridors.” 

3.) Compatible with adjacent land uses and neighborhood context? 
Additional analysis is needed to determine the types, locations, and intensities of land uses that may be 
appropriate at this location.  

4.) Was the proposed change requested or considered as part of a recent update to the Comp 
Plan or other planning process? 

The request is part of an active concept plan review case.  

5.)  Is there any change in circumstances, community needs, or new information that would 
warrant the proposal be considered as part of this update? 

The potential acquisition of the site and an active land use case with a site plan under review represents a 
changed condition.  The current owner of the site is a public agency that is more consistent with a Public 
land use category (Mental Health Partners), but the property may transition to a private use pending the 
outcome of the active land use case.  

The applicant for case no. LUR2015-00058 submitted a plan with a residential density that required a 
high density zoning district. On October 1, 2015, Planning Board indicated that a medium density product 
could potentially be supportable on this site, rather than a high density product. Since that meeting, the 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 726Packet Page 729



applicant has requested that their BVCP request be amended to reflect a medium density residential 
request and has indicated the need for more flexibility to determine the appropriate BVCP land use 
designation.  
 
6.) Are there enough available resources to evaluate the proposed change (city and county 

staffing and budget priorities)?  
This request would require a moderate amount of staff time. Analysis of the surrounding area and the 
impact of potentially allowing for uses in the Medium or High Density category would need to be 
carefully considered.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 727Packet Page 730



   

BVCP 2015 Major Update 2/4 Request for Revision 
   

 

BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
2015 MAJOR UPDATE : 

REQUEST FOR REVISION 
 
1) Type of Amendment (check all that apply): 
 

 
_____ Land Use Map Amendment 
 
_____ Changes to the Area II/III boundary 
 
_____ Service Area contractions or Minor Changes to the Service Area Boundary 
 
_____ Other Map Amendment  
 

 
2) Please provide the following information 
 

a. Brief description of the proposed amendment: 
 
 
 
 
  
 

b. Brief reason or justification for the proposed amendment:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. Map(s) proposed for amendment: ___________________________________________________ 
 

b. Brief description of location of proposed amendment: 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Section: ____________  Township: ____________ Range: ______________ 
 

c. Size of parcel: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 

24 1N 71

1.27 acres

✔

Amend land use from Public to RH-3.

Amending the land use from public to RH-3 would allow for the development of
workforce housing in a amenity-rich location with direct access to multi-modal
tranportation in a neighborhood that has a lack of housing options.

Proposed amendment at the parcel addressed 3303 Broadway. Parcel is located
on Broadway between Hawthorne Avenue and Iris Avenue in front of Foothills
Elementary School.



   

BVCP 2015 Major Update 3/4 Request for Revision 
   

 

 
 

3) Applicant:   
 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
4) Owner:   

 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

5) Representative/Contact: 
 
  Name: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

6) Does the applicant have a development application or some interest in a property that in any 
manner would be affected by this amendment proposal? (If yes, please explain): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Margaret Freund

(804) 536-9800

Mental Health Center of Boulder County

Fulton Hill Properties

(804) 226-9555

3139 7th Street Boulder CO 80304-2511

1333 Iris Ave Boulder CO 80304-2226

1000 Carlisle Avenue Richmond VA 23221

Yes, applicant is a resident of the neighborhood and wishes to develop the 
parcel to the highest and best use that is compatible with the neighborhood. 



Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan 
 Request for Revision 

Supplemental Narrative 

Parcel Address: 3303 Broadway 
Applicant: Margaret Freund 

1. Reason or justification for proposal

Amending the land use from Public to Residential High 3 (RH-3) would allow for the
development of workforce housing.

The parcel located at 3303 Broadway offers an unparalleled opportunity to provide
workforce housing in a location that is:

(1) within a neighborhood that lacks housing diversity; 
(2) along a busy arterial corridor well served by alternative modes of 

transportation; and 
(3) in close proximity to shopping, employment, and recreation. 

The change in land use to RH-3 at 3303 Broadway is appropriate to the corridor and 
would continue the existing pattern of development that already exists along the 
corridor between Balsam and Quince including multi-family housing and commercial 
uses. Moreover, several areas along Broadway contain more intense uses than the 
current zoning allows including multi-family housing in the RR-1 zone at 1170 
Juniper and a medical office in the RR-2 zone at 3575 Broadway.  

2. Relationship to the goals, policies, elements, and amendment criteria of the
Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan

Amending the land use from Public to RH-3 allows for the development of workforce
housing and meets the following goals, policies, elements, and amendment criteria:

a. Housing Boulder Goal #2: Maintain the Middle – Amending the land
use creates the opportunity to develop a multi-family apartment building
with units affordable to individuals earning 80% of the area median
income.

b. Housing Boulder Goal #3: Diverse Housing Choices – Amending land
use makes it possible to create apartments in an area that is primarily
single-family housing.

c. Housing Boulder Goal #4: Create a 15-Minute Neighborhood – The
site itself is adjacent to an elementary school, public transportation,
bicycle routes, and car-sharing sites and in close proximity to retail
services and employment. RH-3 on the North Broadway corridor would
allow for workforce housing within this amenity-rich environment.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 730Packet Page 733



Developer proposes wellness center, fitness center, micro-offices, and a 
café on-site to enrich the 15-minute neighborhood module.  

d. Boulder Housing Preliminary Theme #4: Improve the Relationship 
Between Jobs and Housing – Workforce housing provides an 
opportunity for teachers, especially young teachers, to live adjacent to 
Foothills Elementary School. Additionally, developer proposes micro-
offices to further strengthen the relationship between jobs and housing.  

e. Housing Boulder Goal #5: Strengthening Partnerships – By approving 
this land use change, the city is a partner in addressing the shortage of 
workforce housing in Boulder. 

f. Housing Boulder Goal #6: Enable Aging in Place – The apartments in 
the project enable retirees living in Newlands to downsize from single-
family homes and age in place in their neighborhood. 

g. BVCP 1.19 Jobs: Housing Balance – 3303 Broadway is located on a 
high frequency transit corridor with excellent access to the city’s mobility 
network to connect to employment centers. 

h. BVCP 2.03 Compact Development Pattern – Strategically placing a 
higher density residential use at 3303 Broadway takes advantage of the 
existing urban services and continues the existing higher-intensity land 
uses already occurring on Broadway. The appropriate location for this 
zoning allows development to occur in a logical manner rather than leap-
frogging.  

i. BVCP 2.21 Commitment to a Walkable and Accessible City – Retail 
and recreation amenities are within walking distance. 

j. BVCP 8.03 Accessibility to Schools – Site is located adjacent to 
Foothills Elementary School allowing households with children to drop off 
and pick up children without driving a car.  

 

3. Location map – In an email dated September 28, 2015, Jeff Hirt said we have 
provided enough maps in the Concept Plan to show the project location. The maps 
included with this Land Use Change Request are from the Concept Plan submitted 
on June 15, 2015. 

4. Detailed map – In an email dated September 28, 2015, Jeff Hirt said we have 
provided enough maps in the Concept Plan to show the project details. The maps 
included with this Land Use Change Request are from the Concept Plan submitted 
on June 15, 2015. 

 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 731Packet Page 734



12

3303 Broadway: Mixed Use with 
Workforce Housing

3303 Broadway will be a mixture 

of small scale housing units to 

provide workforce housing for 

singles, couples, and young fami-

lies. Approximately one half of the 

apartments on site will be effi-

ciency units. Smaller units serve 

the demographic most likely to 

take advantage of the transit and 

pedestrian lifestyle opportunities 

provided by this location.

Housing will be complimented by  

a small coffee shop/juice bar,  

wellness and functional fitness 

center and micro-offices.

Neighborhood supportive ameni-

ties include a community room 

dedicated to use by members of 

the surrounding neighborhoods. 

The coffee shop is an amenity 

nearby neighbors have asked for, 

and micro-office space provides 

office space within walking 

distance to Newlands and the 

Kalmia/Silverlake neighborhoods.

3303 Broadway Program:

94 units of housing

55 efficiency units

23 one-bedroom units

16 two-bedroom units

1,700 s.f. community room

6,250 s.f. wellness and functional 

fitness 

1,200 s.f. coffee shop

5,650 s.f. micro office space

114 parking spaces

2 
be

d 
97

6 
sf

be
d

K
D

R

ba
th

LR

ba
th

be
d

54
09

 s
f

re
ta

il 
sp

ac
e

K C
om

m
un

ity
 r

oo
m

11
90

 s
f

m
ee

tin
g 

ro
om

12
0 

sf

27'-0" 102'-0"

73
'-4

"
45

'-8
"

20
0'

-0
"

17
9'

-0
"

53
'-0

"
63

'-0
"

27'-0"

154'-0"

m
ai

l

12'-6"

effi

hw

422sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

LR
B

R

K

1
1

'-3
"x

1
0'

-6
"

1
2

'-7
"x

1
9

'-1
1

"

D
R

8
'-6

"x
8

'-0
"

co
a

t

hw

6
8

3
 s

f

LR
B

R

K

1
1

'-3
"x

1
0'

-6
"

1
2

'-7
"x

1
9

'-1
1

"

D
R

8
'-6

"x
8

'-0
"

co
a

t

hw

6
8

3
 s

f

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

F
ire

 la
ne

17
30

 s
f

T
T

T

R
C

C

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

2 
be

d 
87

5 
sf

60
 s

f

be
d

be
d

D
R

2 
be

d 
81

9 
sf

K

LR D
R

effi

hw

422sf

RT

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

ef
fi

hw

4
2

2
sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

effi

hw

422sf

Service Community

Coffee

Boccee

Residential units

West plaza — 

with street access

Wellness

Residence

Public plaza

access room

resident and
visitor access 

Micro offices

shop

center

entry

access
Parking

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 732Packet Page 735



13

3303 Broadway Concept: Ground Floor and  
Parking Level Plans

Residential unitsCommunity

Coffee

Wellness

courtyard

shop

center

Garden level parking - 114 spaces

Residential units

Micro offices

West

room

Entry plaza

Lobby

Lobby

Ramp up

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 733Packet Page 736



14

201 Bus Route

208 Bus Route

SKIP Bus Route

Y Bus Route

school

rec center

market

cafe or resturaunt

bank

beauty salon

small specialty retail

medical center

airport taxi

gas station

open space

shopping center

Multi Use Path

Designated Bike Route

Onstreet Bike Lane

Hillside Shops, 
home of Lucky’s Market

North Broadway Shopping Center, 
home of Ideal Market

North Boulder Park

Iris Fields

Ego Car share and Bcycle

North Boulder Rec Center

Open Space
SITE

Highest and Best Use: Multi-family Housing

Analysis of the site conditions and 
our community outreach show that 
the highest and best use of the site 
is as a primarily residential target-
ing residents likely to use alternative 
modes of transportation on a daily 
basis. Development of the site with 
the proposed mix of small scale resi-
dential units and limited commercial 
space is supported by the following 
factors:

  Continues an existing pattern of 
development on the North Broadway 
corridor

  Residential land use in harmony 
with surrounding properties

  Residential use generates less 
traffic than other uses available 
through review

  Multi-modal transit opportunities 
to minimize vehicular traffic: multiple 
bus routes on Broadway, bike lanes 
and paths nearby, eGo car share and a 
B-cycle station across the street

  Close proximity to commercial 
and retail services: North Broadway 
Shopping Center, Hillside Shops 

  Quick and easy access to major 
employment centers: Downtown, CU, 
NIST

  Close to recreational assets: Open 
Space, North Boulder Recreation 
Center, North Boulder Park

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 734Packet Page 737



15

This site offers excellent multi-

modal access. It is extremely well 

served by buses, both the high 

frequency Skip bus that connects 

the entire city north to south and 

neighborhood bus routes 201 

and 208. The skip runs every 15 

minutes.

The site is adjacent to or nearby 

several bike routes, on-street bike 

lanes and multi-use paths. 

Across Iris Avenue to the northeast 

is a Boulder B-cycle station offer-

ing bikes for hire.

Also across Iris Avenue is an eGo 

car station with cars available on a 

short term basis for members.

Multi-modal Access

201 Bus Route

Multi Use Path

Designated Bike Route

Onstreet Bike Lane

208 Bus Route

SKIP Bus Route

Y Bus Route

B Cycle Station

E Go Carshare

SITE

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 735Packet Page 738



16

Proximity to Shopping

A wide range of commercial 

services are available on 

Broadway. Within .9 miles north 

and .6 miles south of the site are: 

two grocery stores, a pharmacy, 

a laundromat, cleaners, 11 restau-

rants and 7 specialty retail shops.

Hillside Shops, 
home of 
Lucky’s Market

North Broadway 
Shopping Center, 
home of Ideal Market

3303 Broadway

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 736Packet Page 739



17

Within a single bus ride or short 

bike ride of the site are the 

following employment centers: 

Downtown, the University of 

Colorado, NIST. A single bus ride 

also takes riders to the Downtown 

transit center with easy connec-

tions to buses accessing all parts 

of Boulder and regional service 

to Denver, Longmont, Golden and 

Denver International Airport.

Proximity to Employment Centers

SITE

Downtown, Regional Bus Station

University of Colorado Boulder

NIST

IRIS AVE

PEARL STREET

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

 S
T

CU-Boulder Campus

Downtown

NIST

Transit Center

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 737Packet Page 740



18

Proximity to Recreation

A short walk to the west along 

Hawthorn Avenue brings people 

to a trail accessing Boulder 

Mountain Parks and Open Space 

land. 

The North Boulder Recreation 

Center is just two blocks to the 

south of the site on Broadway.

North Boulder Park is within five 

blocks to the south of the site and 

the Boulder Community Gardens 

are four blocks to the east.

Goat Trail trail head, 
Via Hawthorn. Access 
to City of Boulder Open 
Space and Mountian Parks

Community Gardens

North Boulder Park

North Boulder Rec Center

North Boulder Park North Boulder Recreation Center Sanitas Trail

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 738Packet Page 741



19

Site Access

IRIS AVE

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

 S
T

HAWTHORN AVE

The site is easily accessed by two 

major arterial roads, Broadway 

and Iris Avenue. These two roads 

provide easy access to much of 

Boulder and convenient connec-

tions to 28th Street/US 36, 

Foothills Parkway and the Diagonal 

Highway providing linkages to the 

greater Front Range metro area.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 739Packet Page 742



20

Traffic Impact

IRIS AVE

B
R

O
A

D
Y

W
A

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

HUG AND GO

FOOTHILL 
ELEMENTARY

Any development of the site must 

carefully consider the traffic 

impacts upon the adjacent school 

and neighborhood. Traffic engi-

neers for the City have stipulated 

that any redevelopment of the site, 

as part of its approval, remove 

the existing curb cut on Broadway 

and provide new site access via 

Hawthorn. 

Additional traffic on Hawthorn 

could conflict with existing 

patterns of student drop off and 

pick up in the “hug-n-go” zone just 

west of the project site. Cars queue 

up in this zone to drop off students 

in the morning and again in the 

afternoon when parents return to 

pick their children up.

The proposed development will not 

disrupt this pattern and will not 

significantly impact the neighbor-

hood. The proposed residential 

use will add only 125 daily trips 

over and above what the People’s 

Clinic use of the site generated. 

These trips will occur primarily at 

hours before and after the school 

day. Contrast this with the 2480 

additional trips that would be 

generated by a medical office use 

on site built to the size allowed by 

current zoning regulations with 

only a use review. These trips, for 

a medical office use, would occur 

throughout the day while parents 

are dropping off and picking up 

their children.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 740Packet Page 743



21

Existing Zoning of the Site and the  
North Broadway Corridor

The site is currently zoned P/public. 

Adjacent land to the east and west 

is zoned RL-1: low density residen-

tial. Land to the northwest is zoned 

RR: rural residential. Land to the 

northeast is zoned P: public. Land 

to the southeast is zoned A: agri-

cultural. 

The North Broadway Corridor from 

Balsam north to Quince exhibits a 

specific pattern of zoning allowing 

more intense land uses immediately 

along Broadway with low density 

residential development beyond. 

Land along much of this stretch of 

Broadway is zoned to allow multi-

family housing of varying density, 

public and limited commercial uses. 

To the east and west of these “arte-

rial” zones land is primarily zoned 

for low- and very low-density resi-

dential development.

Zoning designations are occasion-

ally misaligned with actual use. It 

is important to note that even in 

areas not zoned for more intense 

use along Broadway those more 

intense uses exist nonetheless  

in contravention to the exist-

ing zoning regulation. Examples 

include: multi-family housing in 

the RR-1 zone at 1170 Juniper and a 

medical office in the RR-2 zone at 

3575 Broadway.

IRIS AVE

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

 S
T

HAWTHORN AVE

Residential-Rural 2 Residential-Low 1 Public Agricultural

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 741Packet Page 744



22

Existing Pattern of Multi-family  
Development Along Broadway

There is an existing pattern 

of multi-family housing along 

Broadway between Balsam and 

Quince. The multi-family hous-

ing occurs on both the east and 

west sides of Broadway. Along 

most of this length multi-family 

development exists only on lots 

that directly abut Broadway. The 

pattern is one of multi-story multi-

family housing along Broadway 

with single family residential 

development immediately behind.

In this pattern, smaller scale more 

economical multi-family housing 

occurs along the arterial street. 

The multi-story, multi-family struc-

tures form an edge to the single 

family neighborhoods behind and 

act as a buffer from the traffic and 

noise of the arterial street. This 

pattern is both appropriate and 

supportive of alternatives to high 

cost single family residential devel-

opment.

Hillside Shops, 
home of Lucky’s Market

North Broadway Shopping Center, 
home of Ideal Market

QUINCE AVE

LINDEN AVE

IRIS AVE

BALSAM AVE

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

 S
T

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 742Packet Page 745



23

Proposed Zoning

The concept proposes a land use 

modeled after RH-3.  

Along much of the North Broadway 

Corridor from Balsam to Iris land 

alongside Broadway is zoned RH-2. 

The 3303 Broadway concept will 

not work within this zone desig-

nation and thus proposes a zone 

designation of RH-3.

RH-2 limits the intensity of 

development through maximum 

dwelling units per acre and mini-

mum open space requirements. 

This designation is most appropri-

ate for standard sized and larger 

residential units. 3303 Broadway 

intends to deliver more hous-

ing in less space through a large 

number of efficiency units. If the 

site was zoned RH-2 the efficacy of 

small units would be offset by the 

requirement for a minimum of 600 

square feet of open space per unit. 

In effect the project would need to 

allocate more land to open space 

(600 s.f.) than it would to effi-

ciency residential units (475 s.f.). 

Working within the allowable three 

story height this would create a 

building small in volume with a lot 

of open site area - most likely with 

surface parking. This suburban 

pattern  of multi-family housing is 

inappropriate for the urban infill 

location at 3303 Broadway. Business-Transitional 2

Residential-High 3

Residential-Rural 2

Residential-Low 1

Public

Agricultural

Residential-Mixed 1

Residential-High 5

Residential-High 2

Residential-Medium 2

Business-Community 2

Business-Transitional 1

SITE

Business-Transitional 2

Residential-High 3

Residential-Rural 2

Residential-Low 1

Public

Agricultural

Residential-Mixed 1

Residential-High 5

Residential-High 2

Residential-Medium 2

Business-Community 2

Business-Transitional 1

SITE

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 743Packet Page 746



4295 Broadway, 
1179 Union Ave.*, 
999 Violet Ave. – LR to MUB 
(*portion of property)

5)

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 744Packet Page 747



Request #5 
4295 Broadway, 1179 Union Ave.,  
999 Violet Ave. 
Initiated by owner of 4295 Broadway 

Request: 
Change the BVCP land use designation from 
Low Density Residential (LR) to Mixed Use 
Business (MUB).   

Staff Recommendation: No 
Staff recommends that this request not be 
considered further as part the 2015 BVCP 
major update for the following reasons:  

1. In 2013-2014, the North Boulder
Subcommunity Plan (adopted 1995) was re-evaluated through an extensive public process and no 
changes were recommended on these properties. 

2. One reason cited for the request is to enable an existing art studio to operate with more impacts
than the city’s home occupation regulations allow. A request to modify or get relief from the 
home occupation regulations is more appropriate outside of the BVCP land use amendment 
process.  

ANALYSIS:  

1.) Consistent with the purposes of the major update? 
Yes.  This is a land use designation change request, which is consistent with the purposes of the BVCP 
major update.  

2.) Consistent with current policies in the BVCP or relevant subcommunity or area plans? 
This property is within the plan area for the North Boulder Subcommunity Plan.  The plan identifies 
appropriate areas for mixed use development, and the subject property is not in one of these identified 
areas; therefore, the requested change is inconsistent with the North Boulder Subcommunity Plan.   

3.) Compatible with adjacent land uses and neighborhood context? 
The existing land use context for nearly all of this part of the corridor identified is low density residential, 
without any indication that this will change in the short term. 

4.) Was the proposed change requested or considered as part of a recent update to the Comp 
Plan or other planning process? 

No, the proposed change was not part of a recent comprehensive plan update. The properties do fall 
within the purview of North Boulder Subcommunity Plan, which was re-evaluated in 2013-2014 with no 
changes to this area.  

5.)  Is there any change in circumstances, community needs, or new information that would 
warrant the proposal be considered as part of this update? 

While there is some momentum in the North Broadway/North Boulder area to better support the arts  
through arts facilities and arts-oriented placemaking, among others, the current North Boulder 
Subcommunity plan does not support this request.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 745Packet Page 748



6.) Are there enough available resources to evaluate the proposed change (city and county 
staffing and budget priorities)?  

This request would likely require a significant amount of time relative to the other 2015 BVCP change 
requests. The impacts of transitioning from low density residential to a mixed use area would need to be 
carefully considered, and the city would need to evaluate the request in concert with the North Boulder 
Subcommunity Plan, which had its overarching vision largely validated in the 2013-2014 update process.  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 746Packet Page 749



BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
2015 MAJOR UPDATE : 

REQUEST FOR REVISION 
 
1) Type of Amendment (check all that apply): 
 

 
_____ Land Use Map Amendment 
 
_____ Changes to the Area II/III boundary 
 
_____ Service Area contractions or Minor Changes to the Service Area Boundary 
 
_____ Other Map Amendment  
 

 
2) Please provide the following information 
 

a. Brief description of the proposed amendment: 
 
 
 
 
  
 

b. Brief reason or justification for the proposed amendment:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. Map(s) proposed for amendment: ___________________________________________________ 
 

b. Brief description of location of proposed amendment: 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Section: ____________  Township: ____________ Range: ______________ 
 

c. Size of parcel: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 

BVCP Land Use Designation Map, NBSP Map

13 T1N R71W
4295 Bdwy (.64ac.) 1179 Union (1ac.) 999 Violet (.82ac.)

✔

Amend BVCP land use designation map for 4295 Broadway (currently RL-1), 
eastern 150' of 1179 Union (currently RL-1), and 999 Violet (currently RL-2) to 
recommend Mixed Use Business along the west side of Broadway from Violet to 
Utica

The current BVCP designation of low density residential prevents the 
development of mixed use transitional development along Broadway, a major 
transit corridor, in a manner that creates a buffer for the residential neighborhood 
west of Broadway

4295 Broadway, eastern 150' of 1179 Union, and 999 Violet, all in North Boulder, 
CO 80304

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 747Packet Page 750



 
 

3) Applicant:   
 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
4) Owner:   

 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

5) Representative/Contact: 
 
  Name: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

6) Does the applicant have a development application or some interest in a property that in any 
manner would be affected by this amendment proposal? (If yes, please explain): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Rebecca Didomenico

(303) 669-7899

Waldorf  School Assoc. of Boulder

(720) 570-1065

Ed Byrne

(303) 447-2555

4295 Broadway, Boulder, CO 80304

999 Violet & 1179 Union, Boulder, CO 80304

ED BYRNE, PC, 250 Arapahoe Ave., Ste. 300, Boulder, CO 
80302

Yes and no. Didomenico has tried to operate as a single family residence with an 
art studio home occupation, but now believes Mixed Use Business (City MU-2), 
which allows Art or Craft Studios <2,000s.f. is more appropriate. No new 
development is proposed. Waldorf School Association of Boulder owns the other 
two properties, but has not indicated any interest in developing them. 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 748Packet Page 751



1

Zacharias,  Caitlin

From: Ed Byrne [edbyrne@smartlanduse.com]
Sent: Friday, October 02, 2015 4:43 PM
To: BVCPchanges
Cc: stephen perry
Subject: Affected properties: 4295 N. Broadway, 1179 Union, 999 Violet
Attachments: Didomenico BVCP land-use-request-form 20151002.pdf; Swoon BVCP land use designation 

map request 20151001.pdf; Didomenico BVCP land-use-request-SLIDES 20151002.pdf

Dear Caitlin, 
  
Please find attached a slightly revised Swoon BVCP land use designation map request.pdf file, which is the narrative statement I just 
delivered with two minutes to spare. Unfortunately, after having a few minutes to re-read the letter, I corrected a made a few typos and 
cleaned up some grammar in this electronic version. If you could use this version instead of the one I just handed in, I’d really 
appreciate it. 
  
To be clear, we included the Waldorf School Association of Boulder parcels, 1179 Union and 999 Violet, without first contacting 
them. We hope to connect with them in the very near future. I will supplement our submittal in response to any concerns they express 
or requests they may make of us after we’ve had a chance to discuss our proposed map revision. I did not want to submit a map 
change just for 4295 Broadway, the Swoon property, because the zoning logic applies from Utica to Violet, not just between Utica and 
Union. I also wanted to avoid “spot-zoning,” which is disfavored. 
  
If you have any questions about our submittal, please don’t hesitate to contact me at your convenience.  
  
Ed Byrne 
ED BYRNE, PC 
250 Arapahoe Avenue, Ste. 300 
Boulder, CO 80302-5838 
Work: (303) 447-2555 
Fax: (303) 449-9349 
Cell: (303) 478-8075 
e-mail: edbyrne@smartlanduse.com 
web site: www.smartlanduse.com  
  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 749Packet Page 752



Ed Byrne, P.C.
A Professional Legal Services Corporation

250 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 300
Boulder, CO 80302 - 5838

October 2, 2015

City of Boulder
Department of Community Planning and Sustainability
attn: Caitlin Zacharias
P.O. Box 791
Boulder, CO 80306-0791

Re: Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan (BVCP) 2015 Major Update
Request for Revision: 4295 Broadway (Didomenico residence & Art
Studio), 1179 Union & 999 Violet (Waldorf School Ass’n. Of Boulder),
Boulder, CO 80304

Dear Caitlin,

Please find enclosed herewith a copy of the 2015 BVCP Major Update Request for Revision form
I am filing on behalf of Swoon Studio, LLC and Rebecca Didomenico, the owner of a single family
residence and art studio home occupation located at 4295 Broadway in North Boulder. After years
of meetings with city staff, Ms. Didomenico built the single family residence and art studio now
known as the Swoon Studio. 

Ms. Didomenico’s intention to build a home that would be able to house an art studio well-suited
to her large scale sculptures was clear from the outset, but staff’s assurances that this home
occupation would be compatible with other uses in the RL-1 city zone district have not proven to be
true. Although pursuing a rezoning of 4295 Broadway to either MU-2 or BT-1 (in which zone
districts, among others, an art studio having less than 2,000s.f. in size is allowed by right) could have
been an option before her substantial investment in the Swoon Studio was committed, all indications
were that this would not be necessary. It now seems absolutely essential. 
 
The North Boulder Subcommunity Planning Process lead to changes in the Boulder Valley
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Map along Broadway north of Violet that has lead to
a dramatic revitalization of the area. See Slide 1, attached. One of the benefits realized early on was
protection of residential neighborhoods adjacent to Broadway by use of mixed use business
development along the east side of Broadway. The Swoon Studio’s articulated rammed earth
building provides just this sort of sound buffering for the residences west of the parcel. See Slide 2,
attached. It also replaced a ramshackle structure that was falling down and in serious disrepair.

Although this sort of buffering is typically associated with “cascading” higher density development, 
the Swoon Studio building, which was designed to be a state-of-the-art net zero home, accomplishes
the same result as a single family residence. The proposal to amend the BVCP Land Use Designation
Map will permit the art studio to exist without having to make it fit within the strictures of the RL-1
home occupation standards found at B.R.C. §9-6-3 (e)(1):

Land Use & Development Planning — Real Estate Transactions — Government & Public Relations
Phone: 303.447.2555 � FAX: 303.449.9349 � Cell: 303.478.8075 � E-mail: edbyrne@smartlanduse.com

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 750Packet Page 753



§9-6-3 (e) Home Occupations:

(1) Standards: A home occupation is a permitted accessory use if the following
conditions are met: 

(A) Such use is conducted entirely within a principal or accessory building and is not
carried on by any person other than the inhabitants living there. 

(B) Such use is clearly incidental and secondary to the residential use of the dwelling
and does not change the residential character thereof. 

(C) The total area used for such purposes does not exceed one-half the first floor area
of the user's dwelling unit. 

(D) There is no change in the outside appearance of the dwelling unit or lot indicating
the conduct of such home occupation, including, without limitation, advertising signs
or displays. 

(E) There is no on-site sale of materials or supplies except incidental retail sales.

(F) There is no exterior storage of material or equipment used as a part of the home
occupation.

(G) No equipment or process is used in such home occupation that creates any glare,
fumes, odors or other objectionable condition detectable to the normal senses at the
boundary of the lot if the occupation is conducted in a detached dwelling unit, or
outside the dwelling unit if conducted in an attached dwelling unit. 

(H) No traffic is generated by such home occupation in a volume that would create
a need for parking greater than that which can be accommodated on the site or which
is inconsistent with the normal parking usage of the district. 

Even a cursory read of these standards reveals that there are many very subjective aspects to the
City’s regulatory standards for home occupations, and not without reason. Ms. Didomenico is not
opposed to the standards, which make a lot of sense in many other circumstances, but their
application to the Swoon Studio located at 4295 Broadway is making it exceedingly difficult for
Swoon to serve as an entry point to North Boulder’s nascent arts and cultural district. These
regulations are designed to keep home occupations virtually invisible, which is fine in other low
density residential contexts. 

However, the Swoon Studio, itself, makes an artistic and design gateway statement that is perfectly
appropriate given North Boulder’s evolution into Boulder’s first arts and cultural district.

I do not specifically recall whether anyone involved in the North Boulder Subcommunity Planning
Process in 1995, or the City of Boulder’s rezoning process to implement its BVCP-adopted land use

Land Use & Development Planning — Real Estate Transactions — Government & Public Relations
Phone: 303.447.2555 � FAX: 303.449.9349 � Cell: 303.478.8075 � E-mail: edbyrne@smartlanduse.com

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 751Packet Page 754



designation recommendations anticipated the opportunity the Swoon Studio now provides to
welcome visitors to North Boulder while declaring that art and culture find a home in our
subcommunity. During this 2015 BVCP Major Update, the Applicant requests that the BVCP Land
Use Designation Map be amended to make the Swoon Art Studio a legal, conforming use while
allowing future development from Union to Violet to provide a similar buffer for the North
Wonderland Community’s residential and educational uses in this area. 

Amending the North Boulder Subcommunity Plan and BVCP Land Use Designation Map to permit
Mixed Use Business on the eastern half block of these three parcels between Utica and Violet is
supported by the following BVCP Policies:

1.03 – The City should strengthen our a diverse economy by supporting the desire of many
community members and businesses to enhance the new arts and cultural district developing in North
Boulder by making the Swoon Art Studio use legal and not merely a home occupation;

1.13 – Allowing mixed use businesses, generally, and an art studio, specifically, along Broadway
near the entrance to North Boulder’s subcommunity center maximizes economic and resource
efficiencies along a transit corridor that provides the public with reliable multi-modal access to the
district from their homes and businesses;

1.22, 1.29, 2.03  – Recognition of existing potential urban facilities and services in North Boulder
that use existing municipal infrastructure, is preferable to creation of new urban development outside
the city limits to replace them;

2.13 – The character and livability of the established North Wonderland Community residential
neighborhoods can be enhanced while limiting the mixed use business zone to the half block running
along the west side of Broadway between Utica and Violet;

2.15 – Allowing Mixed Use Businesses to locate between Union and Violet along the west side of
Broadway creates an opportunity for compatible future development along Broadway that can shelter
the neighborhoods behind the half block, providing both a transition to Broadway and an effective
visual and sound  buffer;

2.17 – The Swoon Studio building can serve as a neighborhood and subcommunity gathering place
and occasional activity center because it is within walking distance of most residents, and bicycling
and bus service are also readily available (11 on-site parking spaces exist, and plans are being
developed to eliminate on-street parking on and along the easternmost 125' of Utica, Union and
Violet, with satellite special event parking provided by the Waldorf Shining Mountain school’s lot);

2.31 – No new development is proposed, but the Swoon Studio represents a different housing type
and a conveniently sited neighborhood and community gathering place carefully designed to mitigate
potential impacts from such get-togethers;

2.36 – The Swoon Studio building is a private sector state-of-the-art environmentally sound and
architecturally distinctive one that has already improved the character of its North Wonderland
Community neighborhood surroundings, while it has also established a visual arts and cultural

Land Use & Development Planning — Real Estate Transactions — Government & Public Relations
Phone: 303.447.2555 � FAX: 303.449.9349 � Cell: 303.478.8075 � E-mail: edbyrne@smartlanduse.com

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 752Packet Page 755



statement that introduces visitors to our North Boulder arts district today;

5.03 – Maintenance of existing well-used and appreciated business services supports Boulder’s
diverse economic base;

5.09 – Making this BVCP Land Use Designation Map revision will further development of the City’s
arts and cultural programs by recognizing the artistic and architectural merit of a unique and iconic
building that is already changing the way people experience North Boulder and will serve as an
economic generator there for years to come; and,

5.12 – If possible, this applicant is fully supportive of the effort to revisit the home occupation
regulations with an eye towards recognizing their economic and neighborhood benefits.

The above considered, the applicant respectfully requests that the North Boulder Subcommunity Plan
Land Use Map and BVCP Land Use Designation Map be revised to designate the  4295 Broadway,
the eastern 150' of 1179 Union, and 999 Violet for Mixed Use Business along the west side of
Broadway from Utica to Violet.

Thank you for your consideration of these comments and the materials enclosed herewith.

Sincerely,

Edward R. Byrne

enclosures
cc: Rebecca DiDomenico

Stephen Perry
Waldorf School Association of Boulder (not consulted prior to this submittal)

Land Use & Development Planning — Real Estate Transactions — Government & Public Relations
Phone: 303.447.2555 � FAX: 303.449.9349 � Cell: 303.478.8075 � E-mail: edbyrne@smartlanduse.com

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 753Packet Page 756



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 754Packet Page 757



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 755Packet Page 758



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 756Packet Page 759



Zacharias,  Caitlin

From: Zacharias,  Caitlin
Sent: Saturday, November 14, 2015 1:37 PM
To: 'gregg'
Subject: RE: Broadway Union and Violet request

Hi Gregg, 

Indeed, Ed Byrne notes that the Waldorf School Association of Boulder was not consulted prior to the submittal of the 
request.  

Please note that staff sent out letters to everyone who submitted a request in addition to all owners of properties for 
which a request was submitted. This letter informed them of the receipt of their request(s) and provided information on 
the review process, including the dates of public hearings by the governing bodies. The Waldorf School was included in 
this mailing. 

I was happy to provide the clarification. 

All the best, 
Caitlin 

From: gregg [mailto:gregg.thornton@gmail.com]  
Sent: Saturday, November 14, 2015 1:22 PM 
To: Zacharias, Caitlin 
Subject: Re: Broadway Union and Violet request 

Caitlin, 
I was referring to the cc: portion, below Mr Byrne's signature. 
Which reads Waldorf School not contacted. I am amazed that the public is able to request a change, to property they do 
not own. Thanks for the clarification on that point. 
And thank you for responding on a Saturday.  

Best, 
gregg 

On Nov 14, 2015, at 10:26 AM, Zacharias, Caitlin <ZachariasC@bouldercolorado.gov> wrote: 

Hi Gregg and Donna, 

Thank you for your message. Could you direct me to where in the request there is a statement that the 
Waldorf School isn’t part of the change request? 

I’d also like to clarify that as part of the change request process, the public may submit requests for any 
property, including those which they do not own. 

Best regards, 
Caitlin 

From: gregg [mailto:gregg.thornton@gmail.com]  
Sent: Friday, November 13, 2015 12:39 PM 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 757Packet Page 760



To: Zacharias, Caitlin 
Subject: Re: Broadway Union and Violet request 

Ms Zacharias, 
I have read the DiDomenico request for 4295 Broadway land use change. The Waldorf school has not 
officially requested a land use change for their property. I see that Ms DiDomenico has stated that the 
Waldorf school, as of October 2nd isn't a part of this change request. I think, because the deadline was 
5PM October 2nd 2015, and that the Waldorf school hasn't requested a land use change. 
The school should be immediately removed from the review process and that the DiDomenico property 
be the only party considered for a review. 
Best, 
Donna & William Gregg Thornton  
1126 Union Ave 
Boulder, Co. 

gregg 
On Nov 12, 2015, at 2:39 PM, Zacharias, Caitlin <ZachariasC@bouldercolorado.gov> wrote: 

Hi Gregg, 

Attached is the request regarding the three properties you had asked about. 

Please find the schedule of public hearings here: 
https://bouldercolorado.gov/planning/bvcp‐changes. 
If you scroll down mid‐page, you’ll see the table.  

All the best, 
Caitlin 

PS‐ Maybe you have a sixth sense, and I’m about to get a cold! I’ll rest up tonight! 

Caitlin Zacharias 
City of Boulder Planning, Housing + Sustainability 
1739 Broadway, 4th Floor, Boulder, CO 80302 
Email: zachariasc@bouldercolorado.gov 
Phone: (303) 441‐1886 

<1N_Didomenico_Broadway Union Violet.pdf> 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 758Packet Page 761



Zacharias,  Caitlin

From: Elizabeth Black [elizabeth@elizabethblackart.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 01, 2015 9:39 AM
To: Ferro, Charles
Cc: BVCPchanges; Zacharias,  Caitlin
Subject: BVCP zoning change request 4295 Broadway, 1179 Union and 999 Violet, 

Dear Charles, 

My husband and I went to the Boulder Valley Comp Plan meeting at Crestview School, and were surprise to learn that 
there is a zoning change request for 4295 Broadway, 1179 Union and 999 Violet,  in the BVCP update.  To see a map 
showing the site and proposed changes: 
 http://boulder.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=c5abdc8ec5f04b048faae7865fbfd515   Below is a copy 
of the requested zoning change from the City’s website.   The City website says that final approval or disapproval of the 
requested zoning changes will occur sometime in the spring of 2016, but that the initial meeting to make the first cut 
will be December 15th, a joint meeting between the Planning Board and City Council.   

We have several questions about this proposed change. 
1. Are you the lead person on this or is there someone else I should be talking to as well?
2. What is staff’s position on this zoning change?  Is Planning staff for it or do you oppose it?
3. This zoning change request contradicts the North Boulder Sub‐Community Plan, which has been the guiding

document for all development in North Boulder.  In the 1995 NBSCP, commercial development is to stay north
of Violet.  A transitional zone (between the business district up by Yarmouth/Yellow Pine/ Rosewood/ Zamia and
our residential district south of Violet) is to stay north of Violet as well.  That is why the Palmos development is
residential and  not commercial; it falls in the “transition zone”.  What is staff’s thinking on how this proposed
zoning change relates to the NBSCP?

4. What is allowed in MUB zoning?  I could not find this particular zoning in the BRC.  Are City zoning designations
different than the zoning designations in the BVCP?  If so, what is the City zoning that would apply here and
what is allowed in that zone?

5. My neighbors are quite concerned and want to get their comments in at the right time.  When is that
appropriate time to comment, and to whom?

6. Do you know what the developer is planning for these parcels?  Can you please tell us.

Thanks very much, Elizabeth Black 

BVCP 2015 Land Use Change Sites: 1037-1N-1 

Request ID 1037-1N-1 

Address 4295, 4395 Broadway St., 1179 Union Av. 

Current 
Planning Area 

I 

Type of Change Land Use Map Amendment 

Current Future 
Land Use 

LR 

Current Zoning RL-1, RL-2 

Proposed 
Designation 

Mixed Use Business (MUB) (Applies to all of 999 Violet and 4395 Broadway and only 
the east 150 feet of 1179 Unioin Av.) 

Acres 2.60

Narrative The current BVCP designation of low density residential prevents the development of 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 759Packet Page 762



mixed use transitional development along Broadway, a major transit corridor, in a 
manner that creates a buffer for the residential neighborhood west of Broadway 

Elizabeth Black 
303‐449‐7532 
4340 N 13th St 
Boulder CO 80304 
Elizabeth@ElizabethBlackArt.com 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 760Packet Page 763



Zacharias,  Caitlin

From: Hirt,  Jeff
Sent: Wednesday, December 02, 2015 3:38 PM
To: Elizabeth Black
Cc: Ferro, Charles; Ellis,  Lesli; Zacharias,  Caitlin
Subject: BVCP Changes - Broadway Properties Follow Up 
Attachments: 1N_Didomenico_Broadway Union Violet.pdf

Hi Elizabeth,  

I am following up on a question you submitted to Charles Ferro as part of the “BVCPchanges” thread regarding the 
Broadway properties (west side of Broadway, roughly between Violet and Utica). I’ll go through your questions, and feel 
free to follow up with any additional ones.   

#1 – I can be your point person on this, feel free to contact me  
#2 – Staff’s recommendation will be set forth in the Dec 15 council memo, and I can send it to you directly (feel free to 
remind me) when it is finalized and goes to council. 
#3 – Regarding the consistency with the NBSCP, same answer as #2 above. The memo will address this, although this is 
the initial “screening” phase so the analysis won’t be too in depth, as compared to those requests that make it to the 
next stage (it sounded from your note that you were generally familiar with this, but feel free to follow up with 
questions on the process)  
#4 – Regarding MUB “zoning” – it is important to distinguish between zoning and the BVCP land use categories.  
Understandable confusion there. The MUB designation is a BVCP land use category.  The BVCP and related land use map 
is advisory, not regulatory. The short answer is that the BVCP land use map provides direction for any future changes.  
The current BVCP land use on the subject properties is Low Density Residential, which means that only a handful of the 
city’s zoning districts would be consistent with this, as Title 9 of the city’s code spells out 4 or 5 zoning districts that 
could be consistent, but would need a closer study. For properties with the BVCP land use designation of MUB (Mixed 
Use Business), the same applies that only a handful of zoning districts would be consistent with this designation.  I 
clipped out the BVCP land use description for the MUB category below (see page 60 of the BVCP). I could see a handful 
of zoning districts being found consistent with this designation, but it would have to be analyzed on a case by case basis.  
Certainly an industrial or low density residential zoning would not be consistent with MUB but there are always grey 
areas.  

#5 – You can submit comments any time and we’ll make sure they are part of the public record for the Dec 15 hearing.  
However, in order to get it in the staff report (typically an attachment), we’ll need something in the next couple of days.  
Anything later than that you can send directly to the city council hotline, or certainly come to the meeting to speak.  
#6 – I attached the full request we received – this will all be publicly available but you are getting an advanced copy!  

Let me know if you have any other questions ‐ 

Jeff Hirt, AICP 
City of Boulder Planning, Housing + Sustainability 
1739 Broadway, 4th Floor, Boulder, CO 80302 
Email: hirtj@bouldercolorado.gov  

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 761Packet Page 764



Zacharias,  Caitlin

From: Elizabeth Black [elizabeth@elizabethblackart.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 08, 2015 9:44 AM
To: Council; boulderplanningboard; BVCPchanges; Ferro, Charles; Ellis,  Lesli; Zacharias,  

Caitlin; Hirt,  Jeff
Subject: BVCP update proposed zoning change 4295 Broadway, 1179 Union and 999 Violet

To Council, Planning Board and Planning Staff, 

I am writing you in regards to a proposed a zoning change for the west side of Broadway from Utica to Violet, changing 
it from Low Density Residential to Mixed Use Business, as part of the Comp Plan update.  The addresses involved 
include 4295 Broadway, 1179 Union and 999 Violet, land which is currently occupied by the Swoon Art Studio and 
portions of the Waldorf School property.  You will be discussing this at your December 15th joint meeting.  To see a map 
showing the site: 
 http://boulder.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=c5abdc8ec5f04b048faae7865fbfd515  Information 
from the City’s website regarding these proposed changes is at the end of this email. 

I oppose this zoning change request because it contradicts the North Boulder Sub‐Community Plan, which has been the 
guiding document for all development in North Boulder.  A guiding principle of the NBSCP is that commercial 
development is to stay north of Violet, with residential districts to the south of Violet.  A transitional zone from the 
business district (up by Yarmouth/Yellow Pine/ Rosewood/ Zamia) is to stay between Four Mile Canyon Creek and 
Violet.  (That is why the Palmos Violet Crossing development is residential and  not commercial; it falls in the “transition 
zone”.)   

Those of you who have been around a while remember the years of extremely contentious meetings to develop the 
NBSCP.  Neighbors were fighting a Safeway development, and vociferously defending their residential areas from 
encroaching traffic and commercial development.  The emotions and issues were much the same as the recent 300/301 
campaign.  The resultant NBSCP has since served us well, and conflict has been minimized.  Houses/apartments/condos 
have been built, streets and infrastructure have been realigned and upgraded on the assumption that the NBSCP would 
be followed.  South of Violet, the entire east side of Broadway has since been built out with single family residences, all 
on the assumption that there would be homes across the street from them.  When you adopted the NBSCP, you 
basically promised these homeowners that they would NOT be facing a business district across Broadway. 

During the recent election season, I have heard you praise the NBSCP, and offer it as a model and desirable alternative 
to the restrictions in 300/301.  If you do indeed want more Sub‐Community Plans for other areas of the City, then you 
should respect the one you already have.  You can’t let the latest whims of Planning staff or developers subvert the 
NBSCP.  If, on the other hand, you do decide that the NBSCP should be ignored, then you should not bother with Sub‐
Community planning for other parts of the City.  It will simply be a brain‐damaging exercise in futility and lead to greater 
voter anger and cynicism when you subvert those other plans in the future as well. 

Our Crestview West neighborhood generally supports the Swoon Art Studio, and feels that an art studio is a good 
addition to the neighborhood.  Swoon’s owner has told me that Swoon has struggled with one particular neighbor, who 
has made many complaints to Code Enforcement about activities at Swoon.  Swoon’s owner told me that these 
complaints are the main reason that they are applying for the zoning change.  I appreciate how much distress one 
neighbor can cause, but  I also appreciate that there are two sides to any story.  Nevertheless, I do not feel that 
subverting the NBSCP and inserting 2 blocks of business district into a residential area is an appropriate solution to a 
dispute. 

Rather, I feel that it would be much more appropriate for Swoon to apply for a Use Review, to convert their dwelling 
unit to a non‐conforming use.  I and others in Crestview West would probably support this change, depending on its 
details.  The Boulder Revised Code specifically lists art or craft studio space, museums and educational uses as 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 762Packet Page 765



compelling needs that may allow such a change. (BRC 9‐2‐15 Use Review, (e) 6: “Conversion of Dwelling Units to 
Nonresidential Uses: There shall be a presumption against approving the conversion of dwelling units in the 
residential zoning districts to nonresidential uses that are allowed pursuant to a use review, or through the change of 
one nonconforming use to another nonconforming use. The presumption against such a conversion may be overcome 
by a finding that the use to be approved serves another compelling social, human services, governmental or 
recreational need in the community, including, without limitation, a use for a daycare center, park, religious 
assembly, social service use, benevolent organization use, art or craft studio space, museum or an educational use.”)  
Swoon’s commitment to the arts, their long‐standing community involvement, their innovative arts programming plans 
and their generous donations to the arts should all weigh heavily in their favor, in such a Use Review.  Their continued 
successful activities are key to establishing a successful North Boulder Arts District. 

I hope you will support the NBSCP and NOT allow Swoon’s  proposed zoning change to the BVCP update, but will instead 
encourage Swoon to apply for a Use Review, and indicate your support of such an application. 

Thanks very much, Elizabeth Black  

BVCP 2015 Land Use Change Sites: 1037-1N-1 

Request ID 1037-1N-1 

Address 4295, 4395 Broadway St., 1179 Union Av. 

Current 
Planning Area 

I 

Type of Change Land Use Map Amendment 

Current Future 
Land Use 

LR 

Current Zoning RL-1, RL-2 

Proposed 
Designation 

Mixed Use Business (MUB) (Applies to all of 999 Violet and 4395 Broadway and only 
the east 150 feet of 1179 Unioin Av.) 

Acres 2.60

Narrative The current BVCP designation of low density residential prevents the development of 
mixed use transitional development along Broadway, a major transit corridor, in a 
manner that creates a buffer for the residential neighborhood west of Broadway 

Elizabeth Black 
303‐449‐7532 
4340 N 13th St 
Boulder CO 80304 
Elizabeth@ElizabethBlackArt.com 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 763Packet Page 766



Zacharias,  Caitlin

From: plandevelop
Sent: Thursday, December 03, 2015 11:31 AM
To: Zacharias,  Caitlin
Subject: FW: re union ave and broadway boulder

Hi Caitlin, 

Here is a message that came in via the plandevelop mailbox regarding the comp plan amendment request for 4295 
Broadway. 

Thanks! 

Chris 

From: Steve Glotzer [mailto:stevieguitar@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 26, 2015 10:45 AM 
To: plandevelop 
Subject: re union ave and broadway boulder 

happy thanksgiving- 

it has come to my attention that the art house on the corner of union ave and broadway is trying to get a 
rezoning to commercial. they were not supposed to build a commercial structure/business to begin with, as it 
was zoned residential, have been a poor neighbor, and now they are trying to rezone to become a worse 
neighbor...please stop this ruining of our neighborhood, quality of life, as well as our property values... 

thank you for your attention to this 

steve 

--  
steve glotzer 
http://steveglotzer.com 
http://www.imdb.com/name/nm3080093/ 
http://soulsacrificetributeband.com/ 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 764Packet Page 767



4545 Broadway* – 
MUI to LI 
(*portion of property)

6)

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 765Packet Page 768



 

Request #6 
4545 Broadway  
Initiated by owner 
 
Request: 
Change the BVCP land use designation of the 
western 200 feet of 4545 Broadway from 
Mixed Use Industrial (MUI) to Light 
Industrial (LI) to better enable continued use 
of the property for self service storage 
facilities, with the remaining eastern portion 
of the property to remain Mixed Use Business 
(MUB). The request would also require an 
amendment to the North Boulder 
Subcommunity Plan.  
 
Staff Recommendation: Yes 
Staff recommends that this request not be considered further as part of the 2015 BVCP major update for 
the following reason: 

The 2013 flood heavily impacted the subject property and the previously existing self 
storage facility’s ability to reopen and continue operating. While this represents a 
changed condition, the BVCP amendment process is not the forum to address this issue, 
as the city’s regulations allow an existing non-conforming use to rebuild following a 
flood. 
 

ANALYSIS:   
 
1.) Consistent with the purposes of the major update? 
Yes.  This is a land use designation change request, which is consistent with the purposes of the BVCP 
major update.  
 
2.) Consistent with current policies in the BVCP or relevant subcommunity or area plans? 
The request would require an amendment to the North Boulder Subcommunity Plan and the BVCP land 
use map. The property owner has other options outside of the BVCP process to address the land use 
issues articulated in the request.  
 
3.) Compatible with adjacent land uses and neighborhood context? 
Continued use of the property as self storage is consistent with the land use in existence prior to the 2013 
floods.  
 
4.) Was the proposed change requested or considered as part of a recent update to the Comp 

Plan or other planning process? 
The proposed change has not been part of a recent Comp Plan update, nor was it part of the 2013-2014 re-
evaluation of the North Boulder Subcommunity Plan.  
 
5.)  Is there any change in circumstances, community needs, or new information that would 

warrant the proposal be considered as part of this update? 
Yes, the 2013 flood heavily impacted the subject property and have created new challenges. The city is 
currently working with the property owner for options to repair or reconstruct some or all of the damaged 
self-storage facilities without the need for a BVCP or North Boulder Subcommunity Plan update. The 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 766Packet Page 769



main issue is that the majority of the property is in the city’s high hazard floodplain, which does not allow 
for structures intended for human occupancy (see map below). However, the city has concluded that self 
storage facilities are not intended for human occupancy (BRC Sec. 9-16), and therefore the self storage 
land use is allowed in the high hazard floodplain, assuming all other technical and land use/zoning 
requirements are met. Staff is not aware of any other properties in the surrounding area going through a 
similar process of rebuilding in the high hazard flood zone.  

 

 
 

The city is also undertaking the Fourmile Canyon Creek Greenways Improvements project, which may 
pertain to the subject property.  The first step is a Community and Environmental Assessment Process 
(CEAP) process with preliminary flood mitigation alternatives.  Staff plans to present this process and 
alternatives to the Greenways Advisory Committee (GAC) in the second quarter of 2016. Once the GAC 
provides support for concepts, it would progress to the City Council review stage at a date to be 
determined. 
 
CEAP is the start of a multi-year process to possibly change the official floodplain boundaries.  This 
process involves prioritization into the city’s Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) and approvals through the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). Any floodplain regulatory changes impacting the 
development opportunities for the property will likely not be in place for several more years, according to 
city flood engineering staff.  
 
The existing zoning (IMS – Industrial Mixed Services) was implemented as part of the 1995 North 
Boulder Subcommunity Plan.  The IMS zoning district does not allow for self storage facilities, so the 
pre-flood use of the property was considered a legal nonconforming use subject to the applicable 
nonconforming use standards in Title 9.  
 
6.) Are there enough available resources to evaluate the proposed change (city and county 

staffing and budget priorities)?  
This request would require a significant amount of staff time. Analysis of the surrounding area, flood 
conditions, the impact of potentially allowing for uses in the Light Industrial category, changes to the 
North Boulder Subcommunity Plan (particularly as it relates to the plan’s “Village Center” concept) and 
other non-BVCP options to address the property owner’s concerns would need to be carefully considered.  
 

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 767Packet Page 770

https://bouldercolorado.gov/flood/fourmile-canyon-creek-greenways-improvements


BVCP 2015 Major Update 2/4 Request for Revision 
   

 

BOULDER VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
2015 MAJOR UPDATE : 

REQUEST FOR REVISION 

1) Type of Amendment (check all that apply): 

 
_____ Land Use Map Amendment 
 
_____ Changes to the Area II/III boundary 
 
_____ Service Area contractions or Minor Changes to the Service Area Boundary 
 
_____ Other Map Amendment  
 

2) Please provide the following information 

a. Brief description of the proposed amendment: 

b. Brief reason or justification for the proposed amendment:  

a. Map(s) proposed for amendment: ___________________________________________________ 

b. Brief description of location of proposed amendment:
 
 
 
  
 
 
Section: ____________  Township: ____________ Range: ______________ 
 

c. Size of parcel: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 

BVCP Land Use Designation Map

12 T1N R71W
.97 acre

✔

Change zoning of western 200 feet of 4545 Broadway, the HVP Boulder Storage
II, LLC property, from Mixed Use Industrial to Light Industrial in order to allow
self-service storage facilities by right; eastern 111-12 feet to remain Mixed Use
Business

The western 200 feet of 4545 Broadway lie within the 100-year high hazard flood
zone. No structures intended for human occupancy are permitted in this area
(BRC 9-3-5). Self-Service storage facilities are prohibited in the IMS zone.

4545 N. Broadway, Boulder, CO 80304

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 768Packet Page 771



BVCP 2015 Major Update 3/4 Request for Revision 
   

 

 
3) Applicant:   

 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
4) Owner:   

 
Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

5) Representative/Contact: 
 
  Name: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
  Address:  
 
 
 
  Phone: _________________________________________________________________ 

6) Does the applicant have a development application or some interest in a property that in any 
manner would be affected by this amendment proposal? (If yes, please explain): 

 

HVP Boulder Storage II, LLC (Att: Jim Meyer)

(312) 541-6752

(Same as above)

Ed Byrne

(303) 447-2555

191 N. Wacker Drive, #2500, Chicago, IL 60606

ED BYRNE, PC, 250 Arapahoe Ave., Ste. 300, Boulder, CO
80302

No. Owner is completing reconstruction of self storage units destroyed by
September, 2013, Four Mile Creek flood. This Map amendment will cause
existing self storage facility to be legal conforming use within the zone district.

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 769Packet Page 772



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 770Packet Page 773



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 771Packet Page 774



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 772Packet Page 775



Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 773Packet Page 776



Ed Byrne, P.C.
A Professional Legal Services Corporation

250 Arapahoe Avenue, Suite 300
Boulder, CO 80302 - 5838

October 2, 2015

City of Boulder

Department of Community Planning and Sustainability

attn: Caitlin Zacharias

P.O. Box 791

Boulder, CO 80306-0791

Re: Boulder Valley Comprehensive Plan (BVCP) 2015 Major Update

Request for Revision: 4545 Broadway, Boulder, CO 80304 (HVP Self

Storage II, LLC)

Dear Caitlin,

Please find enclosed herewith a copy of the 2015 BVCP Major Update Request for Revision form

I am filing on behalf of HVP Self Storage II, LLC, the owner of a self-service storage facility located

at 4545 Broadway in North Boulder. This facility was severely damaged in the floods that occurred

in the Four Mile Creek drainage during September of 2013. During the course of applying for City

approval to repair and restore the self-storage facility’s structures, the owner learned that no other

viable economic uses are allowed pursuant to the currently applicable City of Boulder zone districts

(IMS and BMS) in the high hazard and conveyance flood zones that traverse the property (see Slide

1, attached), because they all involve structures that are intended human occupancy. B.R.C. §9-3-5.

 

The North Boulder Subcommunity Planning Process lead to changes in the Boulder Valley

Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Map, designating Mixed Use Industrial on the western

200 feet of 4545 Broadway, and Mixed Use Business on the eastern 111-12 feet of the property. See

Slide 2, attached. This BVCP map amendment, after the City zoning was changed to implement it

(see Slide 3, attached),  converted the Secure Care self-service storage facility at 4545 Broadway into

a legal nonconforming use (see Slide 4, attached), even though it was a legally conforming use prior

to the map change. 

The result of this nonconforming status was a building repair and reconstruction building permit

approval process that was made extremely complicated, time-consuming and expensive by the

Federal Emergency Management Administration’s (FEMA) policies with respect to nonconforming

structures in its high hazard and flood conveyance zones. 

It is extremely doubtful that anyone involved in the North Boulder Subcommunity Planning Process

or the City of Boulder’s rezoning process to implement its BVCP-adopted land use designation

recommendations anticipated this unfortunate outcome. During this 2015 BVCP Major Update, the

Applicant requests that the BVCP Land Use Designation Map be amended to restore the legal,

conforming use of self-service storage facilities in the portions of 4545 Broadway that are in the

mapped high hazard and 100-year flood conveyance zones.

Land Use & Development Planning — Real Estate Transactions — Government & Public Relations
Phone: 303.447.2555 � FAX: 303.449.9349 � Cell: 303.478.8075 � E-mail: edbyrne@smartlanduse.com

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 774Packet Page 777



Restoring the legal, conforming self-service storage facility use by amending the North Boulder

Subcommunity Plan and BVCP Land Use Designation Map to Light Industrial instead of Mixed Use

Industrial is supported by the following BVCP Policies:

1.03 – The City should support a diverse economy that supports the demonstrated need of many

community members and businesses to store their personal property in proximate self-service storage

facilities;

1.13 – Provision of self-service storage facilities within the city limits maximizes economic and

resource efficiencies while providing the public with reliable and equitable storage services near their

homes and businesses;

1.22, 1.29, 2.03  – Preservation of existing urban facilities and services within North Boulder, using

existing  municipal infrastructure, is preferable to creation of new urban development outside the

city limits to replace them;

2.15 – Splitting the designated uses to include Mixed Use Business along the 111-12 feet of

Broadway frontage preserves the opportunity for future development along Broadway that can reflect

the more intensive uses on the east side of Broadway, transitioning effectively and providing a visual

buffer between Broadway and the service industrial self-service storage facility use;

3.16 – Use of the high hazard and 100-year flood conveyance zone land for structures not intended

for human occupancy prevents danger to human life while allowing productive use of land near the

center of the North Boulder subcommunity;

3.20  – Similarly, balancing the community’s interest in proximate self-storage facilities while

preventing unwise uses in the floodplain serves the public without endangering them; and,

5.03 – Maintenance of existing well-used and appreciated business services supports Boulder’s

diverse economic base. 

The above considered, HVP Boulder Storage II, LLC, respectfully requests that the North Boulder

Subcommunity Plan Land Use Map and BVCP Land Use Designation Map be revised to designate

the western 200 feet of 4545 Broadway for Light Industrial Use instead of Mixed Use Industrial.

Thank you for your consideration of these comments and the materials enclosed herewith.

Sincerely,

Edward R. Byrne

enclosures

cc: James Meyer, HVP Boulder Storage II, LLC

Land Use & Development Planning — Real Estate Transactions — Government & Public Relations
Phone: 303.447.2555 � FAX: 303.449.9349 � Cell: 303.478.8075 � E-mail: edbyrne@smartlanduse.com

Attachment E - Staff Analysis for the Initial Screening Change Requests

Agenda Item 5A     Page 775Packet Page 778


	Part 1- Map and list of requests
	Summary of Requests
	Part 2- Criteria
	III Land Use Map Descriptions
	Part 3- Requests
	Area I & II Enclaves- 1- 2130 and 6287 Arapahoe Ave
	2-350 Broadway LR to TB
	3- 385 Broadway- TB to LR
	4- 3303 Broadway, PUB to MR or HR
	5- 4295 Broadway, 1179 Union, 999 Violet
	6- 4545 Broadway



